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Introduction

1. The present report is submitted pursuant to Economic and Sccial Council
rasclution 1988/38 entitled "Summary or arbitrary e=xecuticns". This is the
seventh repert of the Special Rapporteur to the Commission on Human Rights on
the subjwmct.

2, in his six previous reports {E/CH.4/1923/16 and Add.]l, E/CN.4/1984,/705,
BSCW, 471985717, BACN.4/1986,/21, BSAON . 4/1987/20 and B/ON.4/1998,/22 and A4d.1
and 2}, the Special Rapporteur has dealt with and examined the various aspects
af the phenomenon of summary executlons, including legal and other theoretical
issuss. He considers that all the kasic elements of the phenomenon have bean
discussed in earlier raports and that 2 sufficiently clear and comprehensive
picture has been presented,

3. The prasent report follows the general structure of the last report,
except that argent appeals to Governments are deseribed in chapter IT B of the
Present report together with other communications fopwarding allegations ko
the Governments concerned and replies and observations therefrom. The Special
Rapportenr believes that this, together with a more detailed description of
alleged situations and caseg, will presant a more comprehensiva picture of the
gitpation in sach country.

4, In chapter III, the Special Rapparteutr describes two issuas which are
being dealt with or are expected to be addresszed in the near future, The two
issnes are: (a) recent developmants with regard to establishing international
atamdards on remedlal anpd/or preventive measures for the protection of the
cight to life; and (b)) co—ardination and co-operation of warious mechanisms
anpd organs televant to the mandates of the Special Rapporteur, which the
Special Rapporteur considers of vital importance in enhancing the effective
implementation of his mandate.

5. Finally, in chapter IV, the Special Rapporcteur gives conclusions and
recommerdations, which are based on his analyzls of the infatmation he has
received and consideration of practical measures to be taken in the imnediate
future,
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I. ACTIVITIES OF THE SPECIAL RAPPORTEUR
A. Gonsultatione
6. The Special Rapportewr wvisited the Centre for Human Rights,
United Nations Office at Geneva, in July and October/Rovember 1988 for
consultations with the Secretariat and again in Janunary 1989 to finalize his

report.

B. Communications

1. Information recaived

7. In the course of his present mandate, the Special Rapporteur received
comunications contalning information concerning summary or arhikrary
executions from Governments, non-governmental organizations and individuals.

8. Information of a general nature, in creply to the Special Rapporteur's
request on 30 September 1987, waa teceived from the Governments of Barbados
amxl Venegzuela.

9. Information of a general nature and/or concarning specific allegatisonz of
sumuary or arbhitracy exscution: were received from the fallowing
nan-governtental ocganizations im gonsultabive status with tha Economic and
Sprial Council: Afro-Asian Pepple's Solidarity Organization, Amnesty
International , andean Commiszion of Jurists, International Ascociation of
Dexmocratic Lawyers, Intgrnational Commigszion of Jurists, International
Confederation of Free Trade Unions, International Federation of Hupan Rights,
Inter=Parliamentary Union, Regional Council on Human Rights in Asia,

10. In addition, information concerning allegad casez of summary or arbitrarcy
executions was received from a numbsr of regional, national and local non-
governmental organizations, groupz and individuala in various parts of the
world.

2, Allegations of summary or arbitrary execuations

11. 1In the course of his mandate, the Special Rapportegr fent cables and
letters to Governments concerning allegations of imminent or actual summary or
arbitrary exacutione in their conntries.

{a) DUrgent appeals

12, In response to information containing allegations of imminent or
threatenad Summary or arbitrary executions which appeared prima facie relevant
to> his mandate, the Special Rapporteur addrassed urgent messages by cable to
23} Governnents, appealing, on purely humanitarian grounds, for the
Government's protection of the right to life of the individuals concerned and
requesting information concerning those allegations. Thess Governments ace:
Algeria, Angola, Bangladesh, Bulgaria, Burundi, China, Cclombia, El1 Salvador,
Equatorial Guinea, Guatemals, Haiti, Indonesia, Iran (Islamic Republic of),
Irag, Jamaica, Jordan, Maopritania, Perun, Somalia, South Africa, Suriname,
United States of America, ¥iet NHam.
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13. BEBeplies wers racelved from the following Governmenks: Algeria,
Bangladesh, Burundi, China, Irag, Jordan, United States of Ameriesz, Viet Nan,

14. These messages and the replies received are summarjized in chaptec II, the
full texts are available for consultaticon in the Secretariat files.,

ib} BRaguests for information concerning alleged summary or _arbitrarcy
2xecutions

15. The Special Rapporteur alsze sent letters to 36 Governments concerning
alleged sumnary ot arbitrary executicnz in their countries as follows:
Bangladesh, Benin, Brazil, Burma, Chad, Thina, Colombia, Czechoslovakia,
Democratic Yemen, El Salvador, Bthiopla, Guatemala, Haiti, Hondoras, India,
Indonesia, Iran {(Istamiec Republic of), Irag, Israel, Mauritania, Nepal,
Hicaragua, Higeria, Pakistan, Feru, Fhilippines, Scmalia, South Afriecs,

Sri Lanka, Sudan, Syrian Arab Rapublie, Thajland, Uganda, United Ringdewm of
Great Britain and Worthern Ireland, Yemen, Zaire.

16, Heplies wepe received from the following Governments: Bangladesh, Rapin,
Brazdl, Burma, Colombia, Czechoslovakia, Hondures, India, Indonesia, Irag,
Migeria, Philippines, Scri Lanka, Syrian Arab Republic, tUnited Eingdom of Great
Britain and Horthern Ireland.

17. In addition, replies were received from the following five Governments
concerning the allegations transmitted by the Special Rapporteur during 1987z
El Salvador, India, Mexico, Nicaragua, Syrian Arab Republic.

18. FPurth=rmore, in the course of his present mandate, the Special Rapporteur
mat the representatives of the following Governments in connectlon with
alleged summary or acbitracy executions in their counteies: Algeria, Benin,
Burma, China, Irndia, Indonesia, Irag, Wigeria, Sri Lanka.

19. The Special Rapporteur would like to express hiz utmost appreciation for
their positive co—operaticon with bim. He valoes these consultations and would
like to have more of them with more countriez in the future, as they help him
to be better informed amd thereby to make a more comprehensive report to the
Commizzion.

20. The alleged summary aor arbitrary executions transmitted to Governments
and the replies thereto are summarized in chapter IT. The £full texts are
avallable For consultation in the Secretariat files.

. Joint hearings on acuthern Africa

2. The Special Rapporteur joined the Ad Hoc Working Group of Bxperts on
sonthern Africa for bhearings on southern Africa at the Workimg Group'z 714th
to 731lst meetings held in Harare, Lusaka, and Dar e2 Salaam, United Republie
of Tanzania, from 3 to 17 August 19B8, The information obtained at the joint
hearings is raflacted in chapker 1I, gection B, {paragraphs 236--24E].
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II. SITUATICNS
A, General

22, The information received hy the Special Rapportenr in the course of his
present mandate imcludes allegarions of executions or deaths which may have
taken place in the absence of the safeguards designed to protect the right to
life embodied in various interpational instrumants, such as the International
Covenant on Civil and Politica)l rigqhts (arts. 4, &, 7, %, 14 and 15), the
Standard Minimum Rules for the rreatment of Prisoners, the Code of Conduct for
Law Enforcement Officials, the Convention against Torture and Qther Cruel,
Inhuman or Degrading Treabtment or punishment, and the Safeguards guaranteeing
protection of the rights of those FPacing the death penalty adopted by the
Economic and Soclal Council in rasclution 1984/50.

23. This information generally related to allegations of the following nature:
{a) hArctual or lmbinent axapsptions:
(i) Without a trial;
(i1} With a trial byt without safeguards designed to protact the
rights of the defendant as provided for in articles 14 and 15
of the Internatjsnal Covenant on Civil and Political Rights.

(b} Deatha which taok placae:

ti) As a result Of porture or croel, inhuman or degrading treatment
during detenticn;

(ii} As a result of abuse of force by police, military or any other
governmental O guasi-governmental forces;

(iii) Ags a result of gzsault by individuals or paramilitary groups
undar official control;

(iv} As a result of agzault by grcups opposing the Government or not
undar its control,

B, Country situations

Algeria

24. 0On 13 Octobar 1988, a ¢able was sent to the Governbent of Algeria
concerning the widespread unrégt throughout the country at the beginming of
Ocktober 1988 in which a large pumber of persons allegedly died as a result of
confrontations between civiliypns and security forces.

25. The Special Rapporteur Abpealed to the Government to take every necezsary
measure in order o protect the right to lLife of individuala and requestad
information on thea above-mentjisned situation, and in particular the measures
taken by the Government t¢ Prevent further loss of life,
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26. On 2 Wovembar 1993, the Speclal Rapporteur met the Perwmanent
Representative of Algerfa to the United Hationz QOffice at Geneva in connection
with the above-mentioned aituation.

27. On 14 December 1983, a reply was received from the Government of Algeria,
atating that no sommary or arbitrary executions had occurred during the
incidents in guestion. It was alsd stated that the Government daplored the
death of 159 persons during the unrest among whom were demongtrators as well
as members of the security forces. According to the ceply, the Govarnmenkt was
respomsible under the Constitutlon for the maintenance of public order and the
protaection of parsons and their property and therefore had proclaimed a state
af silaege on 5 October 1388 which was 1ifted on 12 October 13988, when the
siktuaktion returpned to nocmal, Tt waa further stated that, undar the
instructions of the President of Algeria, the Council of Ministers had adepted
a series of measures at its meeting on & December I38B in favour of the
daceazed and those wounded during kthe incidents and that it had alap taken
decizicons concerning those arrested.

Angola

23, On 15 Hovember 1988, a cable was zent ko the Governpent of Angola
concerning two alleged cagsea of lmminent execution. According to information
raceived, two peraons named Marcolino Pazenda and Joaguim Antonioc were
gentenced to death on 24 Ockober 1388 by the Luanda Garrison Military
Tribonal, follewing their conviection for worder and robbery. In this
connectlon it was allaged that, zinte the beginning of 1988, five perzons had
besen zentented to death, withont the right bto appeal to a higher tribunal
adainzt the death gentences.

29. The Special Rapporteur appealad to the Government toe look into the
above-mantioned casea and requested information on them, in particular
regarding the proceedings of tha Tribunal, a3 a result of which the twe
pecsons had reportedly been santenced ke death.

3. At the time of vreparation of the present report no ceply had been
recaived From the Government of Angola.

Bangladesh

I1. On 20 May 1938, a cable was sent to the Governmant of Bangladesh
concerning an alleged cage of imminent execuntion. According to informadion
recaived, a man named Mohiuddin waz allegedly sentenced to death on

3 Hovenbar 1985 by Special Military Court No. B in Jassore. It was alleged
that at that time the defsndant waz not granted the right to appeal against
the verdiot and sentence of the Special Military Court. Furthermore,
Mohivddin'a petition for marey wa=z gaid to have besn rejected by the
Pragident.

32, The Special Rapporteur requezted information on the case, in particular
on the procaduraz of thae Special Military Courk.

33. On 9 Rovenbar 1988, a letter wae gant concerning an alleqed case of death
in detention. According to information received, on 5 Movamber 1987, a psrson
named Abu Saved Moksednl HBug Rinto, a student from BEatwali in Baridisasl, 2ied as
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2 result of beatings while in detention at Barieal gaol. It was alleged that
the post-wortem, ordered by the Depuky Commissioner of Barisal, found that
Rinto had died due to head injukles an? that his body carried marks of
beatings. Ho investigation was known to have been carried out so far on the
cage,

34. ‘The Special Rapporteur requested information on the above-mentionad case,
and in particular, on any investigation carried out into the case, including
an autopsy, and any measures taken by the authorities to bring those
respongible to Justise and prevent further occurvence of such deaths.

15, dn 7 July 1984, a veply wAR teceived traom the Goveromant af Banqladesh ko
the cahle of 30 May 1988, atating that on 26 May 1988 the President had
commuted the death sentence imposed on Mohiuddin te life imprisonment.

36, On 16 December 1988, a reply was received from the Governmant of
Bangladesh to the letter of ¢ November 1988, stating that a judieial
investigation was carried out into the death of A.S, Moksedul Huq Rinto in
Barisal gaol, that subsequently the chief and another gacl guard were charged
with having contravened certain sections of the Bangladegh Penal Code
concerning the treagtment of prizoners and that the cases were curraently being
triad by the session judge of Barisal.

Benin

317. Om 9 November I1I98E, a letter was sent to the Government of Benin
concarning an alleged case of death In detention, According to information
raceived, a person named Remy Glele Rkpokpo, died in cugtody on

18 Januwary 1988 as a result of torture in the Central Police Station
{Conmisgariat central) in Abo®ey., Ho investigation or inquest was said to
have baen carried out concernlng his gdeath.

18, The Special Rapporteur cedquasted information on the above-mentioned case
and in particular on any investigation of the case, including an autopsy, and
any measuras taken Iy the apthorities to prevent further occurrence of such
daaths,

39. On 23 Decenmber 1988, a reply was received from the Government of Benin,
stating that thers were no political detainees or prisoners of consclence in
Benin, It was stated that, during the periods of grave tension in the
country, certain peopls who had decided to carry out activities with & view to
sat iougly disturbhing the social order had been summoned and placed under
administrative detention for guestioning to clarify thelr involvement in
activities which wonld endanger the social peace and stability of democratic
institutions, In order that those convicted of such activities could assume
full rasponsibility in accordance with the law, measures were taken by the
conpetent organs. It was further stated that, in order to deal with the
abuzive practice of deprivation of liberty in garrisons by certain officera,
the Head of State had reiterated relevant provisions of the Fundamantal Law
which embodjed the principieas of habeas corpus as well as Act Ho. 51-004 of

231 March 1981 and that he had again forbhidden the practice of excesslive
detention without charqe. According to the reply., the People's Central
Prosecutor's Office (parquet populaire central} had a mandate to ensure the
legality of detention, to visiting places of detention regularly and supervise
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the administration of detention. It was also stated that wvarious activities
ware organized to inform and aducate administrative bodies and the people in
general with regard to human righte, in ordar to protect citizens against
arbitrary action, With regard to conditions of detention, it was stated that
regular vizits by the Peoplea's Prosecutor's Office ensured respect Eor humah
dignity and contributed to the rehabilitation of offenders in their social
Life.

4%. On 13 January 1989, tha Jpacial Rapporteur mek the Parmanent
Representative of Benin to the United NHationsg Office at Geneva, With regard
to the Ccase of Glale Akpokpo, the Permament Reprasentative stated that he had
eraed his Government to cargy out an inguiry into the gase. According to the
Permanent Representative, i€ the person in guestion had been found dead, a
Judicial investigation would have beasn held regarding the circumstancesz of his
death and the result of the investigation would be communicated to the Special
Rapportewr.

41. 1In addition, the Permanent Representative briefed the Special Rapporteur
with regard to the recent developments in Banin concerning human rights,
Inzluding the esrablisbment of garicus natiornal institurions under the new
Constitution of 1976, such as the People's Tribunals and People's Prosecutor's
Of fice, the appointment of Judges, the creation of the national sectlon of the
Association of African Jurists, the organization of natlonal seminars on human
rights and the recent reinstatement of privately owned newspapeIs.

Brazil

42. On 28 July 1988, a letter was sent to the Government of Brazil concerning
the following allegations.

43, During the past Saveral years, hundreds of persons, said to be ¢riminal
sugpacts, have been killed In various parcts of the ecountry by so—called
"vigilante groups” whose members allagedly included current and former palice
cfficars. In spite of zfforts made at various levels of the Sovernment to
suppress this chenomenon, killings continued to be reporked. In Rio de
Janeiro alone, 47 parsons weres reporked to have been killed by vigilante
groups in one week at the end of September L387.

44. On 29 December 1987, in Pard State, at least eight unarmed parsons died
when Parid Stats military police opened fire while clearing gold-miners amd
thairc famllims who had heen blockading a bridge ac Maraba,. In addikion to the
eight confirmed deaths, 66 perzons were said to be still missing, presumed
dead. Later, one witnass, who had reported on television on 30 December 1337
that he had seen =lght corpses below the bridge, was allegesdly beaten to death
by a group of unidentified men.

45, On 28 March 1988, in the vicinity of the $3o Lecpolde Indian area,
District of Benjamim Constant, State of Amazonas, Eour Ticuna Indlans were
allegedly killed in an attack by the employees ¢F a timber company operating
in the area. Despite the Fact that the incident was seen by numercus
eva-wltnesses thoese lnvolved in the killings were allegedly released from
police custody.
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46, On 9 Hovember 1988, another letter was Sent transmitting information
alleging that, during the past several years, a number of persons, mainly
peasant smallhclders (“pesseiras®) but also trade-unionists, priests and
lawyers working with pesgant communities, wece killed by persons hired for the
puzpoese. In a number of cases of such killings the police personnel were
allaged ko have been directly involved., It was further alleged that the
authoritias had failed ko take effective action to investigate the killings,
to bring those responsible to Jjustice or to protect khose whose lives were
threatenad.

47. The Special Rapporteur described, by way of example, 13 sweh incidents
which had allegedly occurred since 1987 in the States of Para, Goias,
Pernambuco, Minas Gerais, Espirito Santo, Bahia and Rcore.

48, The Special Rapporteur requested informaticn on the alleged ocourrence of
sumpmary and arbitrary executions and in particular on any investigations of
those cases, including autopsies, and any measure Laken oy the anthorivries Yo
bring those regponsible to justice and prevent further occurrence of such
death=.

49, Om 22 September 1988, a reply was received from the Goveroment of Prazil
ke the lattar of 28 July 1988, stating that the so-called "wigilante groups"
ware "extermination™ groups =et o by highly dangerous ocutlaws of the
organized crime underground, and that the Government was taking the necessary
measures to suppress such groups, for example in the Stats of 53¢ Paulo, where
a highly specialized corps was being trained and deployed to deal with the
problem, With regard ko the incident of 29 December 1987 in Pard State, it
was said that the Commission appointed by the Council for the Defence of Human
Rights [CDDFH] of the Ministry of Justice to investigate the incident had
recommended in its report an inguiry by the Department of Federal Police.

With regard to the alleged killing of four Ticuna Endians in the State of
Amazonag, it was stated that on 30 March 1988 the Departmant of Federal Police
had begun its inwestigation of the killings amd that the Haticnal Foupdation
for Azszsistance to Indigenons Populations (FUNATIY had requested the Departnent
of Federal Police to detaln those snspected of the murders, had followed the
progress of the investigation in Benjamin Constant and regquested the Ministry
Of Welfare to extend pensicn benefits to the widows of the wictins.

50. On 21 December 1%88, a reply to the Special Rapporteur's letker

of 9 November 1988 was received from the Government, stating that trhe
aliegations were under consideration by the competent authorities. The reply
stated further that the Governmant considered as summary or arbitrary
executions only those cases in which Government afficials were actually
involved.

Bulgaria

51. ©On 11 May 1968, a cable was sent to the Government of Bulgaria concerning
three alleqed ¢ases of imminent exacution. According to information recetved,
three persons named Elin Madzharowv, Altsek Chakarov and Save Gecrgievy were
allegedly sentenced to death on 25 April 1938 by the Supreme Court of
Bulgaria. It was alleged that there was no right of appeal to a higher
tribunal. The Special Rapporteur, 5taring that, in casaes of capital
punishmant, he was concerned with any allegation of absence of the satfeguards
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intendedd £ ensu¥e the basic rights of the imdividoal, including the right to
appeal, requested information in particular on the legal provisions and
procedures under which the above-mentioned persons were sentenced to death.

52. At the time of preparation of the present report no reply had been
received from the Government of Pulgarilas.

Burma

53. Om 28 July 1988, & letter was sent to the Government of Burma
transmitting the allegation that during 1986 and 1987 a large number of
unarmed civilians, said toe be members of the Karen ethnlec minority, had been
Xilled by the Burmese army durlng its countec~-insuryency coperations in Earen
State, It was alleged that the wvictims, who were suspected of links with
oppozition groups, had disobeved travel or rationing restrictions, or had been
selzed by the army to work as porters or guides were allegqedly killed by

them. In hls letter the Special Rapporteur stated that he had received a list
of 60 suwh victims.

54. On % Hovember 1968, another letter was sent congerning the alleged
killing by Government forces of civilians belonging to the Shan e«thnle
minority during the past several years in Shan State. It was alleged that the
victing, either suspected of links with oppositicon groups or selzed by the
army to work as porters, had been shot, stabbed or beaten to death, The
Special Rapporteur described, by way of exanple, £ight alleged incidents of
such killings since the beginning of 1987.

55, Furthermore, the Special Rapporteur transmitted by the same letter
informatien alleging that, during the unrest in Rangocn and other cities grince
June 1988, a large number of pearscns had been shot dead by governbenk Lroops
during demonstrations or had died in detention as a result of torture and
ill=treatment,

S6. The Special Rapporteur redquested informaticon on the alleged occurcence of
sumnary and arbitrary executions and in particular on any investigations of

_ those cases, iocluding autopsies, and any measures taken by the authorities to
bring those respensible to justice and prevent further occcurrence of such
deaths.

57. oOn 4 O¢tcber 1988, a raply was received from the Government of Burma to
the Special Rapporteur's letter of 28 July 1988, stating that, aceording to
the authorities concerned, including those In the remcte frontler areas, no
cases of summary and arbitrary executions had taken place fn the military
operations in the years 1986 and 1987,

8, On 22 Decembsr 1982 apcother reply was received stating that, with regard
to the allegations transmitted in the Special Rapporteur's letter of

28 July 1988, the Burmese authocitiez had found it Aifficult to establish the
facts, since relevant particular:a, such az names of victins and exact
locarions of alleged executions, were not specified. However, it was alsc
gtated that general and comprehensive ingquiries, carried out in the command
areas where counter-ipsurgency operations took place during 1986 and 1387,
indicated that oo summacy or ackitracy executicns had occurred in those areas
as alleged, It was further stated that thete were no vecords of official
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complaints lodged by the families of the alleged victime with the local
authorities concerned. wWith regard to the allegationa transmitted by the
Special Rapporieur's letter of % November 1%B8, inguiries and investigations,
carried cot with the regiments and infantry divislons concerned, revealed that
the alleged summary or arbitrary executiens had not taken place,

59, Concerning the demonstrations in Rangcon and elsewhere in the eountxy
since June 19B8, it wasg stated that the security awtherities, in the process
of restoring law and order, had acted with the utwost zelf-restraint and had
resorted to shooting only when pubklic and private property and the life of
citizens were in jecpardy. It was also stated that, in the genaral confusion
caused by certain unscrupulous political elements which had reached its peak
between 8 and 16 August 1988, action taken by the security forces had resulted
in 192 deaths and 570 injured nation-wide, including the death of

four scldiers and 19 members of the police force. It was further stated that
since 1% September 1988 when the national defence authorities had been forced
to intervene to assume State responsibilities, the security forces had taken
action tc prevent vandalism and looting and to quell the general wiolence.
Aceording to the reply, this had resulted in the death of 516 and the injury
of 272 looters country-wide and the death of 15 and the injury of 21 other
pereons in the confusion of the violent demonstrations. With regard to the
arrest and detention af those beliseved to have bamen invelwved in the
disturhances, it was said that the State iaw and Order Bestoration Counecil had
anacted a new law ensuring due process of law with proceedings in open court,
unless otharwise provided for by law, the right of the detainee to Jaferce and
the right to appeal.

60. ©On 11 January 1989, the Special Rapporteur mebt the Parmanent
Representative of Burma to the United Wations Office at Geneva, who briefed
him on a nunber of positive developments which {f was hoped would remady soma
of the conditions which had diven rise to a situation In which loss of life
had taken place. Zmong the points mentioned were:

{a) More than one political party may be registered and permitted to
operate and participate in elections but they must be committed ko the trus
democratic system. Currently there are more than 167 political parties which
have besn reqistered with the Multi-Party Democracy General Eleciions
Comnmission;

{b) The Multi-Party Democracy General Elsctions Commission has baen sat
up to prepare the successful lding of free and fair multi-pacty democracy
general slsctions:

{c] The parsons who have been appointed to the caid Commission have been
accepted by all the parties in Burma as persons of integrity, impartiality and

good rapute;

{d} The groups of youths, students and monks who have been repatriated
from Thailand have baepn accorded individual attention to ensura that each of
them has returned safely ko their parepts, TUp to 5 January 1989,

1,929 studentz2 had retyrned home.

6l. On khe gane day additional information was recelved from the Government
of Burma, statimg that the recent rumours that students who had reterned from
the horder areas had been arrested and killed ware totally false.
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Burundi

62. On 26 August 1988, a cable waa sent to the Government of Burundi
goncerning alleged deaths as a cesalt of a bribal conflict. According to
information received, thousands of people had been killed singe mid-August
1488 during a tribal conflict which had broken out in the north of the
countcy. Further information reczived alleged that the intervention of the
army had resulted in even more victinms.

63. The Speclal Rapporteur appealed to the Government to take all necessary
measures to ensure that the right te life of every citizen was fully protected
and requested information on the above-mentioned aituaticon, and in particular
on the steps taken by the Government to prevent further loss of life.

64. On 311 hpgqust L3238, a note verbale wasz received from the Government of
Burundl concecning the situation in the communes of Htega and Marangara and
the nature of the operations carried ouk by kthe army. According to the noke
varbale, on 15 August 1388, one week after tension had been increased by
elements who had infiltrated the local population and misled them to believe
that an attack by the other ethnic population was imminent, a gcoup of rebels
armed with spears, machetes, ¢lubs and sktones had attacked and killed the
inhabltants of Ntega and proceeded to the commune of Marangara with similar
intentions. It was also stated that, when the Government troops had arcived
at Htega on 1§ huguast 1988, theuwuszands of people had 2lready died oc
disappeared and hundreds of houses had been burned down. Tt was further
stated that the gevernment troops had intervened in order to stop the carnage,
but that a number of persons not lnvolved in the killings might have been hit
by stray bullets fired by the government troops. BAccording to the note
verbale, in such a situatlion the security forces had no alternative but to use
thelr arms, not against inngocent civilians, but againat the rebala who were
engaged in killing, raping and arscn, Tt was stated that the victims incleded
people from all ethnic bagkgrounds.

Chad

65. On 28 July 1988, a letter was sent te the Government of Chad concerning
the allegaticn that several persens had died in secret detention centres as a
result of ill=-treatment. The causes of death were alleged to have included
lack of wedical treatment, extremely poor diet, lack of water and lack of
ventilation in owercrowded cells, in addition to bzatings and other physaical
ill-treatment. One of the prisoners, named Guilou Hassane, allegedly died on
18 Hovember 1987 in a secret detention centre in H'Damena. It was fFurther
alleged that no investigation or ihguest inte these deaths had been carried
out.

6. The Special Rapporteur reduested information on the above-mentioned
allegation and, in particular on any investigation of the case, including an
autopsy, and any measures taken by the authorities to bring those responsible
to justice apd prevent furthey occurrence of guah deaths.

67. At the time of preparation Of the present report, no reply had been
received from the Government.



E/CH,4/1083/25
page L2

China

68, On 10 June 1932, a cable was sent to the Government of China concerning
the alleged imminent execution of four perzons named Lobsang Tenzin, Taecing
Dhoandap, Gyaltzen Choaphwl and Sonam Wangdu, who were allegedly involved in the
kliling of a Chinese policeman during the demonstration on 5 March 1988 in
Lhaga, Tibet Autonomoung Region. Since the official announcement of their
arrest allegadly refarced to them as the “four principal crimlnals®, fearz were
expregaed Lo the Spacial Rapporteur that the four might net have been granted

a fair and open trial amd that they might be executed shortly after the trial.

69, The Spacial Rapporteur, being concerned, in casges of capital punishment,
with any allagatien of absence of the safegquards intended to ensure the basic
rights of the dafendant as provided for in article 14 of the International
Covenant on Civil and Polieical Rights, raguestad informaticn on the
abova—mantiosned cases, in particular on the legal proviszions and procedures
under which the four might have bean charged armd teied.

70. On 12 December L9BB, another cable was sent concerning alleged cases of
killing of demonstrators in the Tibet Austonomousg Region. According to
information received, on l0 December 1988 at least two persons, a Buddhist monk
and a nun, were alleqedly shot dead in Lhasa when the security forces fired at
a orowd of demonztrators ak close range without warning., EBxprecaions of
concern were racaelved by the Special Rapporteur that further deaths might occour
in similar confrontations between the security forces and the local population.

TL. Thea Special Rapporteuar appealad to the Government to take all necessary
meagures to encure protection of the righe to 1ifa of the individual andg
requestad information on the above-mentionsed incident.

72. On 28 July 1988, a letter was sent to the Governnent of China concerning
allegations that, in the sitvation of athnic unarest in the Tibet Autcnomous
Region, notably since September 1987, several deaths mostly of Tibhetana, had
allegedly occnrred, ineloding cases of shooting and beating to deakh of
demonstrators by the Chinese police forces and execution of detainees after
terture in prigon., Sewvera)l such alleged cases brought to the attention of the
Special Rapporteur were described as follows:

(a] ©On 3 October 1987, two monks from Sera Monagtery were shot dead when
they tried ta prevent the police from entering the monastery)

(b} During 1987, in Drabehi prison a number of persons were executad
without triml after having besn tartured:

{e) On § Novamper 1987, Lobsang Wangchuk, aged 74, died shortly after
hiz release Erom detention due to repeatad torture and malereatment during his
imprisoament. However, according to an official account he died of liver
cancars;

{d) On 5 March 1988, during the demonstration in and around the Jokhang
Tawple in Lhasa gevaral pecsons, including monk® and lay Tibetans, wera shot
or beaten ro death by the police forcoes:

(2} According to an official account, a Chinese policeman was killed by
demongtrators doring the above-mentioned demonztration.
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73. On % Novamber 1988, another lekter wag zent to the Government of China
concerting the allegation that, in the Tibet Autonomous Region, several deaths
were alleged te have occurred as a result of assault by police or priscn

of ficers. Twoe example=s of such alleged caces were described as follows:

{a} On 10 May 1988, a Ehampa from EKanze died in a Lhasa hospital as a
rezult of savere beatings in Gutea Prisong

(b} ©On LI June I988, in Lhasa, TRangpo, aged 35, died as a result of
gevare bheatings after he had been arrasted, together with two other men, by
the Lhasa Tengton Chue branch security police.

74. The Special Rapporteur reqguasted informatlion on the above-mentioned
cases, and in particular on any investigation of the cases and any measures
taken by the autherities and/or the Jjudiciary ko establieh the facks and bring
thase responsible to justice.

75. Om 21 July 1988, the Special Rappoerteur met the Parmanent Representative
of China to the United Wations Office at Geneva and received a reply from the
Governmenkt tGc his cable of 10 June 1988, The reply stated that the riots
which had ocourred in Lhasa zince Septembar 1087 wara the work of 3 handful of
Tibetan ceparatiates ancouraged by the Dalai Lama, and that the ipcident of

5% March 1948 was a case in point. It was Further ctated that, in order to
gafequard national security and maintain social order, the local Tibetan
authoritiezs had been forced to take acktion to arrest the crganizerszs of the
ricts a3z well az ehose participanta whe had commivted msrious crimes,
Including those wiho had killed a police officer., This action, according to
the reply, was fully justified and Chinase Jjudicial organs would bring the
criminals to trlal strictly in keeping with the legal procedures and mets out
due punishment bo them in accordance witcth the law, With regard to the
judicial procedure ¢oncerning tha death penalty, the reply referred ko the
Covernment's communication of 13 January 1988 to the Special Rapporkeur which
wag depcribed in his last report to the Commisaion on Human Rights
(E/CN.4/1984/23, paras. 79-B0).

T6, Om 2% November 1988, a reply wasg received from the Government 9f China to
tha Spacial Rapporteur's cable of 12 December 1%88. Accordimg ko the repily,
on the morning of 10 Decembaer 1988, leaflets advocating the independence of
Tibat had been Ffound in the streets apd later about 30 lamag and pune had
gathered at the Ramoge Temple and headed the Jokhang Temple 2quare in Bargor
Strack, On the way, a few cthar pecple had joined in and some of them had
utifalded and waved the so—called "national £flag of the Lndependent State of
Tibet". It waz said that, as the crowd grew unruly, policemen on duty Eried
to persuade the marchars to stop making troobla, but tha latter had refused.
Thay had even thrown stones and bottlez at the policemen. It was alsoc =tated
that after repeated unsuccessful admonlticen=s, the policemen were forced to
fire warning shat2, that, in the ensaing ochaos, one lama, not two perzons as
alleged, was killed and 13 injured, all of whom, except two, had guffered only
minor injuries and that they had received timely treatment. It was further
stated that, since then, public order in Lhasa had returped to normal and no
*confrontation®™ af the kind mentioned by the Special Rapporteur had occurred.
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Colombia

TF. On 28 October 19BB, a cable was sent to the Government of Colombia
poncerning alleged death threats to Angela Toban Poertaxs, leader of the
teachers" union of the Deapartment of Antioguia {(ADIDA).

78. On 18 Howember 1868, another cable was sent concerning alleged death
thraate to Fr. Jorge Eduardo Serrano Orddfiez, a parizh priest of San Pio X,
Cuonta, Department of Norte de Sanrander, made by a paramilitary group calling
itsalf "Muerte g ravolucionarios®™ (MAR).

79. In both cables. the Special Rapporteur exprezsed his concern for the life
of the persons named and requested information on the measureg taken ta
protact them,

0. On 28 July 1988, a letter was =ent to the Governmant of Colombia
concerning the allsgation that during the past year more rhan 1,000 persons
had besn killad by membars of the security foroes and by paramilitary groups.
Sapprity forces unite which wera alleged to be responsiblae for sweh killings
incleded the police intelligence unit of the National Police, (F=2), the
army's Iintelligenca division, {B-2), the army's intalligenca and
countar=-intalligance battaiion {gg;allén de Inteligencia ¥ Contra-Inteligencia
{(BINCI}), and regualar army battalione and regiondl brigades, Evidence
alleqadly suggested that the paramilitary groups Known a= "death sguads®™
includsd police and military personnel and their civilian anxiliaries. It was
alleged that, in many of the killings by the "death squads™, military weapons
and vehicles without number-plates wers used and that those vehicles had heen
sern Mwar army premises or police sktations. It was further alleged that hokh
civil and military authorities had failed to bring thaose responsible ko
justice. Many of the victims were trade-union leadars and activist=z, members
of political partles, farm Workers, human rights activists, lawyers, jodges
and journalists. Lists of several hundred vickims, including many members of
tha Central Worker= Union of Colombia {CUT) and of the Dnidn Parrintica (0P),
were received by the Special Rapporteur, who descoribed by way of esanple

16 incidents of killings which had allegedly occurred during the pariod
betwaen Ruglust 1977 amnd May L9ER.

8l. On 9 Novembar 19488, another letter was senk to the Government of
Colombia, transmitting further allegations that, according to geveral sources,
between January and August 1988, some 400 persons, mostly peasants, were
allegedliy kilied in 46 incidents of "masgacresz" of five or more persons. The
Special Rapporteur, having received, since August 1968, more than 150 names of
victims of such killings, aileged to have cacurred since the beginning of
1288, described by way of example 14 incidents which reportadly occurred
during the period between March and October 19889.

§2. In both letters, the S5pecial Rapportenr requested information on the
above-mentioned allegations and in particular on any investigation of the
cases and any measures taken by the authorities andsor the judiciary to
establish the facts and brimg those responsihle to justice,

83. Ietters were recelved from the Government of Colombxia on 25
and &3 August, 13 October, 9 an2 11 Hovember 1983 and 9 Janwary 1989,
transmitbing information on a number of cases as follows:
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fa) With regard to the cases of Salvador NHionoo Martinesz,
Hevarda Ferndndez, Carlos Paez Lizcano and Luz Stella vargas, who were
allegedly killed on 22 October 1987 by nmembers of the police in the
minicipality of Hobo, Department of Huila, it was stated that investigations
were in a preliminary stage;

ib} With regard to the caze of the deaths of Z1 peasants, menbers of the
Bgricultural wWorkers Union {SINTRGRO} on 4 March 1938 on the estates of
La NHegra and Honduraz in the municipality of Currulao, Department of
Antiopgquia, it was =steted that the Ldministrative Security Cepartment [(DAS]) had
conducted the preliminary inguiry and the prosscution was being prepared by
the Judge of the Second Court for Public Order. Two personz, a civilian and a
saldier, were statad to have been detained and 10 arrest warrcants had been
izaued ao far;

(c) With rvegard to the case of the killing of Alvaro Garcds Parra,
Mayvor of Sabana de Torres, Department of Santander on 1é August 1986, charges
were brought against two natiopal army officers on 1 July 1988 and the
criminal investigation waz being carried ouk by the Eleventh Court of Criminal
Investigaticn, Bucaramanga. The proce#dings were still in the pre-trial stage
and no one hal yet beern detained;

(d} With regard ko the caze of the killing of Héctor Julic Mejia, Judge
Ho. 13 of Medellin Court of Crimimal Investigation was conducting the
preliminary investigation with a wview to idenktifying the perpetrators of the
of fence)

(&) With regard to the case of Luis Bntonio Bohdrguez, the Bucaramanga
Court of Criminal Investigation was conducting a criminal investigation into
the alleged disappearance of Bohdrguez;

{£) With regard to the case of Osvaldo Teheran, the investigation was at
the preliminary stage in the Fourth Public Order Court in Bogotd;

(g} With regard to the case of Juan Diego Ararngo Morales, Judge Ho, 49
of the Medellin Court of Criminal Investigation was investigating the case;

{h} With regard to the killing of Carlos Mauro Boyos, Fiscal
General de la Wacidn {Attorney-Sensral of the Nation), ard his two bodyguards,
the Second Specialized Court in Medellin was handling the pre-trial stage of
proceedings. A detention order was issued for five persons implicated in tha
abduction and murder of the Attorney-General; three of them were detalned and
aunmonses and arrest warrants wers issusd against three other persons)

(1) With regard to the death of Marco Antonio Sanchez Casztellsn
praliminary proceedings were being held by the itinerant judye of the
Eighth Court of Criminal Invastigatlion, and on 26 Octobar 1998 the court
requeated the local DAS and criminal police officiala to apprehend two parsons
for the murder. Mo Aisciplinary procesdings had been initiated in the absenhcs
of evidence of the responaibllity of the national policep

t3) With regard to the cases of Honduras Farm and La Negra Faem in
Turbo, Urabd, oh 4 Macch and that of Punta Coquitos in Turbo, Urabd,
Antioguia, on 11 April 1988, it was stated that, since they were connecked, it
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had been declded by a court order of 25 June 1988 that there should be joint
proceedings, The proceedings were currently with the Highar Publis Ovder
Tribunal of Bogotd awaiting a decision on the appeal lodged by the persons
under investigation, requesting cancellation of the datention orders and
dismissal of the casea. With reqgard to disciplinary proceedings, the National
Police Prosecutor decided to open a formal disciplinacy investigation of a
captain on 9 September 1988;

{kl] With regard to the case of La Mejor Esquina in Buenavista, Cordoba,
“on ¥ April 1988, it was stated that the case was in the investigatory skage
and that several persons had been zentenced by the Pubklic Order Court to

10 and 6 year=s" impriscntent. It was alsc stated that there was ng evidence
of any participation in these events by State security forces, It was further
stated that a disciplinary investlgation was baing carried out inte poasaible
irreqularities that the Pirst, Sixth and Tenth Criminal Bxamining Magistrates
of Monteria might have committed in the trial concerning the Mejor Esquins
ma33aCre, by releazing scme of the personz charged;

{1} With regard to the case of Llana Caliente, San Vicente de Chucuri,
Santander, on 2% May 1988, it was2 stated that the events had resulted from a
violent armed confrontation between the forces of order and demonstrators In a
peasant march. Accocrding ko kthe investigation, a person named
Luls tiribe Suérez, allas Commandant Camila, who had been anmnestied and was
czllaborating with the army as an informant, was with the soldiers when the
action oceprred and he fired at and killed Four army officers and zaldlers,
Hine civilians alse leost their lives. It was stated that the investigation
was almost completed;

{m} #With regard to the case of La Fortuna, Bacrancabermejs, Santander,
on 23 May 1988, it was stated that despite numercus statements and ltems of
evidence collected in the case, it had not been possible to identify the
individual pecrpetrators of or partigipants in the punishable of fenceas;

(n)] With regard to the case of San Rafael in Antioguia, on 24 June 1968,
it was stabted that the case was atill at the ipvestigatory stage., It was also
atated that a captain had been arrested and remanded in custody and thakt the
accused had filed an appeal against the security measure)

(o] With regard to the death of Humberto Santana Tovar in Rivera, Huila,
on 26 June 1988, it was stated that the case was still at the investigatory
staqge, the parpstrators of the crime being unidentified bo date;

(g} With regard to the death of Luis Aungusto Bonilla in Cumaral, Metrs,
oh 3 August 1988, it was stated that the investigaticon bad not heen completed;

(g} With regard to the case of Explanacidn Settlement, Yarima, E) Carmen,
Sanktander, on 20 July 1988, it was stated that the proceedings wece skill at
the investigatory stage, that it was not possible to idenkify the perpetrators
and that the Office of the Regional Prosefubkor, Barrapncaberme]ja, was continuing
the inveatigation to establish whether 5tate forces had been involved. It was
further stated that the preliminary report submitted by the committee of
inguizy concluded that the multiple homicide had been carried cut at
Explanacién Settlement, by a group of ceimdnals known as MAS, on membera of the
peasant community of the Tres Amigos, Explanacidén and Los Qlivos Settlements,
for the purpose of dominating and controlling the areas in question;
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{r} With regard to the death of Ricardo Rics Serrano, in Bucaramanga,
Santander, on 26 August 13BB, it was stated that on 20 December 1988, the
Pifth Public Order Court of Bucaramanga declared itself incompetent to
continue the investigation, since it took the view that there was no reason to
suppogse that the murder had been committed for terrorist purposes and ordered
that the casz be returned to the Hinth Court of Criminal Investigations

{g} With regard to the death of Ledn Cardona, William Antonio Acboleda
and Sergio Ospina in Medellin, Antioguia, on 20 August 1988, it was stated
that the cases were still at the investigatory stage, items of evldence having
been collected without it being possible to identify the perpetratorsjy

{t) With regard to the case of Popayén, Canalete, Cdrdoba, on
30 September 1988, it was stated that It was at the investigatory stage and
that the authorities had not been successful to date in establishing the
responsibiliity of specific persons or anti-social groups for the acts in
question:

{u) With regard to the case of Martin Calderdn in Cicota, Norte de
Santandexr, on 7 Goctober 1988, it was stated that the gcase was still at the
investigatory otage and that there was o indication that State security
forces were involveds

{v) With ragard to the death of César Castro Espeln, in Puecto Espafia,
Cancacia, Antioquia, on 16 October 1988, it waz stated that the case was at
the investigatory stage and that the investigation was encountering
difficulties of collecting avidence due bto the refusal of witnesses to come
fotward. It wag further reported that there was no indication that State
agents were involved;

iw) wWith regar?® to the death of Alvarc Fajarde in Isnocs, Huila, on
14 October 1986, it was stated that on 24 October 1985, a warrant of arrest
was issued for a second lientenant and that on 23 December 1%88 the
inveztigation had ended and pre-trial proceedings had hegun,

84. In addition, the reply of 9 January 1989 from the Governmenkt of Colombia
etated that the allegations commnicated to the Gwernment by the Special
Rapporteur lacked both trukh and objectivity. The Goveroment recognized the
complexity of the sjituvation axperienced by the country and the difficulties
encountered in preventing criminals from escaping justice, but that 4id not
indicate either ite complicity or itg acqulescence in the commission of
atrocious crimes against the ¢ivilian population. It was further stated that
the President, in order to deal with that problem, had suggested a numbar of
policies, such as s=trengthening the Qffice of the Attorney-Gensral of the
tation, appointing civilian prosecutors for the armed forces and national
polica, establishing the Presidential Council for the Defence, Protecilon and
Promotion of Haman Right=, signing and ratifying the international instruments
relaring to the defence of fupdamental rights and promcting them as an
objective of the country with the participation of the armed forces,
eatablishisig Public Order Court® and Tribunals dedicataed exclusively to this
parpose and suspending the emergency military courts for the trial of
civilians. The reply further stated that the Government was not unaware af
the pos=ibility that members of the State mecurity forces, abueing the powers
entrosted to them, might commit illegal act=s, for which they would he hald
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criminally and administratively responsible, but that the allegatien that the
entire armed forces were compromised inm an institutional policy of violating
human rights was contzary to all the evidence. According to its reply, the
Government was using the institutlonat coercilve machinery to put an end to haw
formg of viclence and criminal activities of the extreme laft and extrems
right a= well as drug traffickers.

Czechoslovakia

g5, On 28 July 1988, a2 letier was =ent toc the Soverpment of Czachoslovakla
transmitting the zllegation that op 26 April 1388 a pepson naned Pavel Wonka,
aged 35, had died in Hradec Krdlovéd prison after having been detained since

5 April 1988, 8Ais family was allededly not allowed to see his body and was
given no explanation of his death, It was also alleged that during his
previcus <detention which had lasted until 26 Pebruary 1988, his physical and
pavchological health had been affected by the physical abuse in Minkovice
prison.

#6. The Special Reppotteur reguested information on the above-nentioned
allegation and in particular on any investigation of the case, including an
avtopsy, amd measures taken by the authorities to bring those rcesponsible to
dustice and prevent further cccurrence of such d=aths.

87. On 20 October 1988, a reply was received from the Government of
Czachoslovaklia, stating that tn the course of his detention from 26 May 1986
in prisons at Hradec Fralové and Mo, 1 in Prague, amd during his priscen terms
at prizons Wo. 2 at Liberec and Ho. 2 in Prague apd at Plzen from

13 August 1987 to 26 Febrvary 1988, no viclence had been used against

Pavel Wenka not had he been subjected to any degrading treatment, It was
further stated that he had died on 26 April 1%688 in the prison at

Hradec Krdlové and that the autopsy performed immediately after his death had
established that death had been caused by heart fajlure after a blocd clot had
penetrated the pulmonary artery, The source ¢f the blood clot was said to be
thrombosiz in the velns around the prostate. It was also stated that the
representatives of Helsinki Watch, a non-governmental organizaticon, had
mentiomned in their report of 4 May 1988 on the result of the avtopsy on the
deceased that they had not found any evidence of violenhce or mistreatment on
the body,

Denocrat ic Yemen

88. On 9 November 1988, a letter was sent to the Government of Democratic
Yemen bransmitting the following allegaticns:

{a} On 12 Decembear 1997 Hadi Bhmad Hasir and 34 other defendants were
sentenced to death by the Suprems Court on charges of treason, terrcrism and
sabotage, in connection with the £ilghting which broke cut in the gapital in
Januaty 198&, Tt was allaged that the defendants were granted 2ocess to theix
defence gounsels only shortly before the krial, followlng months of
incommunicado deteption, and that they were tortured in detention, It was
further alleged that they wete not allowed to appeal againat the verdicts by
the Suprems Court. ©n 29 December 1967, Hadi Ahmad Mazsir and Eour others
sentenced to death were reportedly exectited in al-Mansura Prison in Aden;
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ik) Between May and July 1588, three men, named Said ba Mu'awwad
ba Daruran, Ahmad Barghash bin Paggar ba Darwan and aAli Sa'id al-Amudi, who
had allegedly been arrested on 23 January 1968, died in custody either at
al-Mukalla or al-Fath Military Camp in Aden., It was alleged that althowgh the
authorities ¢laimed that the detainees died ag a8 result of a heart problem,
their bodias had not besn returned to their families,

BY%. The Special Rapporteur reguested information on the above-mentioned
allegations and in particular on any investigation of tha eases, inecluding
autopaiea, and measures taken by the authorities to bring those responsible to
ingtice and prevent furthar ocourrence of such deaths.

)y, Ak the time of preparation of the present report, no reply had been
received from the Government of Democratic Yamen.

El Salvador

91. On 1 Movenber 198E a cable was sent to the Govarnment of El Salvador
concarning the alleged killing of four day labourers, members of the
Agociacidn Nacional de Trabaladores Agropecuarios {BNTA) ([Mational amsociation
of farm workers) from Bl Chile Piedra Lana, juriesdletion of Yamabal, Morazén,
on 1% November 19BE by members of the Third Brigade, Infantry of San Miguel
and Military Detachment Wo. 4 of San Prancisco Gotera, Morazéin, and the
alleged threat to the life of Rend Benftez Medrano, father of ona of the

Four viectima.

92, The Special Rapporteur, axpressing his concern for the life of

René Benitez Medrano and his family, appealed to the Government to take all
necessary meagures to protect the life of René Benitez Medrano and membarg of
ANTA who were allegedly arresated or threatened.

93. On 28 July 1988, a letter was gent transmitting allegations that during
the past year an increasing number of perscns were allegadly killed aithar by
mexbers of the Salvadorian armed forces or by paramilitary groups, so-callad
"death squads*. The wvictims were said to have included peagante, workers,
stodents, politicians and trade-unionists. Some of tha victime were allegedly
sucpected of support for and cellaboration with the guerrills groups.
According to the sources of the information, such killings were carried out in
a guary or arhitrary mannar, although military authorities had clalmed that
gome of the vieckimg had died in combat or had been the targets of querrilla
attacks. It was also alleged that, despite the authoritieg' slaim thak Ehe
"death sguadzs" were Independent extremist groups of the right and left which
were beyond Govermment control, evidence sugqested that members of such groups
included police and military personnel acting in plain elothesz, under the
orders of sSyperior officers., Tt was further alleged that ingqulries Intc such
killing= ware repeatedly hampered by intimldation, interference in the work of
the judiclary and selective application of the rules governing evidence.
Consedquently it was alieged that, with a few exceptions, no investigation of
such deaths was zarrilad out and that only a very few of those whe had given
the orders to kill were brought to justice.

94. The Special Rapporteuar described, by way of example, 13 incidenta of
killings which allegedly occurred during the period between June 1887 and
April 1988,
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%5. 1In addition, the Special Rapporteur mentloned the alleged killing of
three women in San Martin, in an attack by Frente Farabundo Marti de
Liberacidn Nacional {FMIN) guerriilas on a bus carcying textile workers,

96, On 9 November 1988, ancther letter was sent transmitting further
alleqations of summary or arbitrary exeputions. The Special Rapporteunr
described by way of example seven alleged incidents of killing, including the
alleged killing of 10 peasants on 21 September 1988 in the village of

San Francisco, San Sebastidn, Department of San Vicenite, by soldlers of the
Jiboa Battalion.

97. In both letters, the Special Rapporteur requested information on the
above-mentioned allegations, and in particular on any investigations of the
cases and measurez taken by the avthorities to bring theose responsible to
Justice and prevent further occurrence of such deathz.

98. On 21 July 1988, a letter was received from the Goveroment of

El Salvador, concerhing the killing of Herbert Ernesto Anaya Sanabria on

26 October 1987, which wes mentioned by the Special Rapporteur in his last
report (E/CN.4/1988/22, paras. 92-94). According to the letter,

Herbert Erpestc Anav¥a Sanabria, Co-ordinetor of the noh-gowverpmental

Human Rights Commission of El Salvador (CDHES) was assassinated in an act of
terrorist viclence. It was stated that on 28 October 1987 the Office

of The Government Briarney had appointed two speclal ihwestigators

to look intg the Gase and that, on 4 Januvary 1968, a person named

Jorge Atberto Miranda Arédvalo, a suspect implicated in the killing of

anaya Sanabria, was handed over to the Pirst Criminzl Court. It was further
stated that the accused confirmed before the Judge his confession concerning
fhils participation in the killing, as a result of which an order was issued Lor
his detention. It was also stated that the President of the Special Criminal
investigation Commission and Minister of Justice had ipdicated that avidence
ravealed that Anaya Sanabria had been executed by the Pecple's Revolutionary
Army (ERF).

Equatorial Guinea

9. On 20 GOctober 1388, a cable waz sent to the Sovernment of Equatcrial
Guinea concerning the case of Joagquin Elena Borengue, former menber of the
militacry police, apd Francisco Bonifacio Mba Wguema, sub-lieutenant of the
armed forces, who were allegedly sentenced to death by the Military Court
{consejo de guerra) on charges which were pot made peoblic. It was alleged
that a group of 19, including the above-mentioned two, arrested in the first
week of Septenmber 19388, were tortured during their detention and that the
trial by th= Military Court was of a summary nature, without guaraptees of the
rights of the accused as provided for in article 14 of the Int=rpational
Covanant on Civil and Polivical Rights.

100, The Specisl Rapporteur requested information on the above-mentcioned cases
and in parcticular on the proceedings of the Military Court as a result of
which the two persons were sentenged to death.

101, At the time of preparation of the prasent report no reply had besn
received from the Government of Equatorial Guinea.
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Bthiopia

102. On 9 November 1988, a letter was sent to the Government of Ethiopia
transmitting the following allegations.

103. During the eviction of the inhabitants of Mihlarb and Bet=Schehaghe
villages in Brtra {(Briterea) in Auguat/September 1983, Said Osman Bamld and
Hohamed Eer-Keblan were allegedly shot dead by zoldiersz of the govermment
forces whenh they resisted eviction,

i04. In anather incident on 24 Qctober 1948, in the village of Mai Harast,
Caret Digtrict, Akelegquzai, Ll pecsona were allegedly killed by government
goldiers when they zhot indigoriminakely at the willagers to enforce eviection,

105, The Bpecial Rapportaur raquested information on tha above-mentioned
allegation=, and in particular con any invastigatrion of the cases and measuras
taken &y the anthorities to bring those regponeible to justice and prevent
furrhay cccurrence of such deaths.

106, At the time of preparation of the prasent report no reply had bean
received from the Government of Bthiopia.

Guatemala

107. On 7 July 1988, a cable was sent to the Government of Guatemala
concarning the allegation of death threats by government agents or individuals
acting with the Gavermment'sz acquiegcence againat afficers and members of the
Electrical Workers Union [STINDE) in Bl Patén and their familias,

108, In view of a number of allegationz of killinga of trade-gnioniets, the
Special Rapportaur, expregaing hie concarn for the life and secority of the
abova~mentioned persons, appealsd to the Government to take eavery possible
masure to protect thair lives and requegtaed information on those cases, in
particular on any invaestiqations thereof, by the appropriate asuthorities and
gteps taken to engure the zafety of the persons concerned.

109. On 2{] September 1988, another cable was fent concerning the case of

Fr. andrés Girdn, a priest and leader of the Asociacidn Hacicpal de Campesinos
Pro—Tierra {(ANC} (Naticnal association of peasants for land), whe was attacked
on 11 September 1982 near Tiquisate, Escuintla, by a group of armed men.
Rodolfo de Ladn Velisquez who wae accompanying Pr. Girdn was allagedly shot
dead. It was alleged that Fr. Girdnm had repeatedly received death threats for
hig role in ANC, from paramilitary groups such as The Ejércite Secrato
Anti=-Comunista (ESA) [Secret anti-Communiszt arny}, whoze moembars reportedly
intluded certain military and security foree parsonnel acting urder superior
orders.

110. In view of a number of allegations that zeveral parzons were killed by
paramilitary groups after receiving zimilar threats, the Special Rapporteur
expresgad his concern for Fr. Girdn’=s iife and reguested information on the
measuras taken to protect 1t and that of others receiving similar threats and
on the appropriate authorities' investigation of the murder of

Redolfo de Ledn Veliazquez,
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1i1. On 30 Septembar 1BRBR, a third cahle was sent concerning alleged death
threzata against membars of the Grupe de Apoyo Mutuo por el Aparecimiento con
Vida de Wpe2tros Familjaras (GAM) (Mutual support group for the return of
missing relativas alive) in the willage of Pachoj, Department of El Quiché.
It was alleqad that Juan Ajanel Pixcar and Sebastiana Ramos, in particular,
were accused and threatened at a community meeting by the Commander of the
Patrullas de Agtodafansa Civil (PACY (Civil Defance Patralg) of the region.

112. The Special Rapportsur, axpressing his concern for the 1ife of the
above-mentioned members of GAM, reguested iaformation on the measnres taken to
protect the lives of the persons receiving death threats.

1:3. On 28 July 19B8, a latter was ment transmitting the sllegation that,
during the past yaar a large nuRber of persons ware alleged to have bean
killed in variocus parts of the country by groups of unidentifisd armed men in
some ingstances Gaid to be members of the aescurity forces. according to one
spurcs, a total of 420 parsons ware killed in & sommary or arbitrarcy manner
during 1387.

Ll4. Among those killed, a number of parszons werse allagedly victims of
military operaticons. The Special Rapporteur described by way of example the
Following inCcidenta:

{a) On L0 April 1987, in the village of Xecnup, Joyabaj, EL Quiché,
12 farmers ware killed whan they attempted to retorn to their village from
which they had been expellaed Eive y=ars earlier;

{bY On 26 September 1987 in Tisumal, Webaj, EL Quiché, two persons were
killed by army shelling, bombing and strafing by planes and hellcopters;

{c} On 27 Septamber 1987, in Xeucalbitz, Nebai, El Quiché, 13 persons
were killed in a military operation, including a 3-ys=ar-old girl.

115. In addition, a number of persons were allegedly abducted by groups of
unidaentifised armed man and later found dead on roads or by the wayside, often
with signs of tortura. 7Tt was allaged that thase paramilitary groups used
particular kinds of vehiclas normally usad by the security forces and acted
with total impunity. The Special Rapporteor describad by way of example,
four incidents of auch killings which allegedly occurresd during Janvary and
February 1988,

114, On 9 Wovembar 1943, another lotter was sant transmitting allegations of
killings by grcups of anidentified men 1n waclous parts of the country. The
Special Rapporiteur described, by way of example, 50 such incidents which
allegedly occurred during the pericd between FTebrvary and September 1538,

117. In both letters, the Special Rapporteor requasted information on the
alleged casaes and in particular on any luvestigations made and any measures
taken by the authorities and/or the judiciary to establish the facka and Lo
bring thosa rasponsible to justics,

118. At the time of preparation of the present report no reply had bee=n
regeivad from the Governpent of Guatemala.
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Haiti

119. On 7 July 1988, a cable was sent to the Government of Haiti concernlng
the allaged death threats made by local govaerpment and security officials and
otharg against several membars of lay Catholic organizations, ineluoding

&t Aneam in the Jean Rabel area.

120. In view of several =imilar infidents Auring the past year when a numher
of pargong were allegedly killed or saricusly wounded by membars of the
sacurity forces or groups of armed civilians, the Speclal Rapporteur exprassed
his concern for the life and security of tha above-mentioned parsons, appealed
to the Government to take the neceszary measarez to protect their lives and
requasted information on the above-mentioned casas.

121. 9n 14 September 1988, ancther cable was sant concerning the incident
which occurred on 11 September 1983 at 5t. Jean Bosco Catholic Church in
Port=au-Prince where a group of armed men allegadly attacked the congregation
during mass in the presence of members of the security foreces and killed

Eive persons.

122. A5 in his previous cabla, the Special Rapportenr expreassed hisz concern,
appealed to the Government on purely humanitarian grounds to take the
necessary Measures bo protect the lives of the persons concerned and reguested
information on the above-mentioned incident, in particolar on the
investigation made or measutres taken to guacantea the right to life of thege
PELSONE,

123, On 9 Bovember 1988, a letier was gent concerning allegaticns that during
the past year a nunber of persons were Killed by members of the securlty
forces or armed individuals allegedly acting with the connivanca of the
security forces or government officials. The wvictims were said to include
members of Catholic lay organizations, human rights aorganizations and trade
unions, In gome cases the victims had reportedly been attacked or threatened
hefore being mitdered., The Special Rapporteur desScribed, by way of example,
threae alleged imnldents of sweh killings, isclodiog the killimg of

Joseph Lafontant, one of the founders of the Ligue Baftienne des droits
humainsg (Aaitian human rights league) and Executive Director of the Centre de
promotion des droits humains {Centre For the promotion of human rights), on
the night of 14711 July 19848,

124, The Special Rapporteur requested information on the all=qgations and in
particular on ahy investigations of those cases, including autopsies, and any
measures taken by the avthorities to bring those responsible to justice and
prevent further oocuirence of such de=aths.

125. On .21 Decenber 1988, a letter was received from the Govarmment of Haitil
transnittimd information on the measures taken by the military Government of
Hajitl ooneerning buman rights and stating that the military Govarnment, in its
determination to consalidate the Process of establishling a representative
damocracy, had issued four detrees conflrming Haiti's adherence to the
International Covenant on Civil and Political Rightsa, the International
Covenant on Economic, Social and Political Rights, and the Convention Againat
Torture and Other Cruel; Inhuman and Degrading Treatment or Punjishment and its
ratification of the Inter-American Convention to Prevent amd Punish Torture.



E/CH.4/19689 /25
page 24

Bonduras

126. On 28 July 1968, a letter Was sent to the Government of Honduras
tran=mitting alleqations of killings by members of the security forces or by
unidentified men. The Special Papporteur described, by way of example, the
following cases:

{a) On 6§ October 19587, in the port of Tela, Department of Atlintida,
Gilkerto Isauls Requeno and Harcigo Ortiz Lediva were killed allegedly by
agents of the Direccidn Haciocnal de Investigaciones (DNI) (Criminal
investigation searvice}. It was alleged that after having been guesticned at
the DNI office, agents accompanied Izanla Requeno to hiz house where they shot
himj

(b} ©On 7 September 1987, in Comayagua, José Luis Pérez Ochoa, aged five,
was beaten by members of the seturity forces when he allegedly ktried to stop
them from mistreating his parent2. The child disd in the Tegucigalpa hospital
on 11 October 1987, According to the police the child died of pneumonia)

{c} On 5§ January 1988, in Tegucigalpa, Jogdéd Isafas Vilorio, a former
arwy sargeant and alleged member of a “death squad®, was ahot dead by
four unidentified gunmen. On 14 January 1988, in San Pedro Sula,
Miguel Angel Pavdn Salazar, regional head of the Honduran Human Rights
Cﬂmissimr and Moises Landaverde ware ahot dsad hy a4 Junman. Imaias Wlorio
and Pavin Salazar were two of the withesaes in the cases of disappearance of
four persons in Honduras before the Inter-American Court of Human Rights;

{d) ©On 7 April 1988 in Tegucigalpa, five students were allegedly killed
when security forces shot at the crowd during a demonstration in front of the
American Embassy.

127, On 9 Hovenber 1988, another letter was sent to the Sovernment of Honduras
transmitting the following allegationss

{a} Om 27 September 1977 in San Pedro Sula, Juan Caballears Sanchez and
Roberto Ortiz Lipez were allegedly shot dead by eight DNI agents after their
car was stopped and they were forced out of it. One of the victims was
reportedly the common-law husband of a laader of the Pederaclén Unitaria
de Trabajadorea de Honduras (FUTH]) (United Pederatlon of Workers of Honduras)
whoe had taken part in a hunger-gtrike in suppore of c¢lajme being made by the
textile workers®' unicon SITRATEXHONSA (Sindicato de Trabajadoras de Textiles
de Honduras 8.3.);

{by On 27 July 1988, in the Mesa Grande refugee Camp, José Maria Leiva
was allegedly srrested by members of the army and later executed,

128. In both letters, the Special Rapporteur requested information on the
alleged cases anpd, in particular, on any investigations made and any measures
taken by the apthorities and/oxr the judiciary to establish the facts and bring
those responsible to justica.

129, On 19 May 1988, an official communication was received frow the
Parmanent Miasion of Bonduras +0 the United Nations Office at Ganeva,
transmitting a report by the Interinstitutional Commisgion of Human Rights of
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Honduras {CIDH) referring, inter alla, to the cases of José Isafas Vilorio,
Miguel Engel Pavén Salazar and Moises Landaverde. Regarding the death of
José Isaia= Vilorle, it was reported that a group called "FLZ Cinchonero® had
clained responsibility for the killing, Regarding the deaths of

Migue=l Angel Pavdn and Moises Landaverde, a report on the preliminary
investigation, including testimony by a forensic expert, was attached.

India

IH). On 28 July 1988, a latter was aent to the Government of India concerning
the allegation that, on 19 April 1986 in Arwal, Bihar State, 21 persons were
alleqgadly shot dead by the police during a peacaful gathering in conrection
with 4 land dilspute. Sevaral perzons wer= zaid to have died; on the way to
hospital, of injuries gustained in the police shaoting. Sharat Sac was
allegedly found dead after hawing been taken alive ta the police station. It
wag &lleged that the poelice opaned fire, without a prior warning, at the
gathering crowd, which included women, children and elderly persons.

121, The Bpecial Rapporteunr requested Information on the alleged deaths and in
particular on any investigationsz of those cases, including aotopsies, and any
measures taken by the authorities to bring those responsikble to justice and
pravent Eurther occurrence of auch deaths.

132, 0n 13 September 19%BB, a reply was received Erom the Government of India
concerning the alleqed deaths at the end of May 1987, during communal viclencs
in and arcund Meerut, Uttar Pradesh, which the Special Rapporteur referred to
in his latest report {E/CH,4/1988/%2, paras. 106-108). According to the
reply, the State Government of Ubtar Pradesh was carrying out investigations
and the final outcome was awaited. It was aldo stated that, meanwhile, the
State Government had activated a scheme for providing financial relief to the
familles of parsons who had lost their lives in the course of the riot.

133, On 30 Hovembar 1988, & reply was received from the Governmant of India
concerning the alleged incldent of shooting of 21 persons by police on

19 Apzril 1988 in Arwal, Bihar State, in connection with a dispute over a pliece
of land in the village. According to the reply, on 19 April 1%83, some

600 or 700 persona gathered on the land in guestion disobeying the orders
pronulgated under se¢ction 144 of the Criminal Procedural Code and indulged in
viclence. It was stated that, after the police had arrested four persons and
withdrawn to the police station, the police statlon was surrounded by a
viclent mob, demanding the release of the arvested persons, It was also
atated Ehat shots were fired at the police station, police barracks and the
family quarters nearby. Under the orders of the Sub-Divisional Offjicer and
the magistrate, shote were fired by the police, resulting in 11 denth=z. It
wag further stated that the injured persons were given first aid and taken to
the Fatya Medical College Hospital where il of them sub&equently died, thus
bringing the total nomber of deaths to Z21.

134, On 12 Janvary 1999, the Special Rapporteur met the Representative of the
Government of India.
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Indonesia

135, 9n 7 November 1988, a cable wazs sent concerning alleged cases of lmminent
execution. According to the information received, two priscnecs named Jayarl
and Sukarjo, sentenced to death for their alleged involvement in the 1965 coup
attenpt were executed during the night of 15716 Octoher 1388, Fears were
expressad to the Special Rapporteur that obher priscners sentenced Lo death on
aimilar c¢harges might be facing imminent execution., The names of 11 prisoners
ware mentioned,

136. The Special Rapporteur, recalling his previows appeal made on 3 June 1985
for the life of those sentenced to death in connectlon with the

above-ment ioned coup attempt, requested information on the present status of
legal proceedings concerning the priscners mentionsd gbove.

137, On 28 July 1988, & letter was sent transmitting the allegation that,
during the past several years, a humber of perzona had been killed in

East Timor by Indonesian military perscnnel. Thirtesn alleged cases of zuch
kKillings (10 in 19B6 and % in 1987) were described by way of examples. In
addition, the lekter transmitted the allegation that during 1986 and 19347
several persons had died in police or military custody. The following

geven Ccages were described by way of example:

{a) Leman bin Idtiz died following a disturbance in Salemba prison in
19846 during which he waz allegedly kicked and beatan. In Auquskt 1987,
twe priscn officiale were convichted by the Fast Jakarta Districet Court of
causing alight injuries to the priaoner and were sentenced ta suspended
saentances of 3 yvears and 18 monthe" imprisonment;

{b) Ferdinand Tarigan died in Simulangun palice station on
5 Hovemher 198€&. Hi=z body was said to have borne marks of torture, hut the
police waz reported to have announced that he hanged himself in the police
atation lavatory. Althowgh the arcest of the Chief of the Simulangun police
gtation and three other police officers was ordered, no charges had bean filed
by Rpril 1937;

{¢} Joni Silvester Yoban, from Cengkaren, West Jakarta, died in hospital
on 12 Rpril 1987 after having been arrested on 1 April 1587 by the local
military disteict command (Koramil) and releamed on the fallowing day. He was
alleged to have died a5 a result of injuries following lll-treatment in the
Foramil;

id} HNasehat bin 8lamet died on 8 July 1%87 allegedly on the way ko
hospital from the police eiatlon in Socuth Jakarta after having been arrested
on 7 July 1987. BRAi= body waz =zaid to have boroe marks of torture;

(¢} Unmar Marjuki from Pllar in Racang Aaing, Cikajang, Weat Jawa {Java),
died on © Septembex 1987 on the way 0 hospital from the Bekasi main police
station, after having been artested on 7 September 1987. The police wera
reported te have statad that he had bean attacked by other prisoners:

(£} Saipin bin Pulc was found dead on the nighe of 21/22 Octobar in the
Citartm River aftar having been arrested on 19 October 19287 apd taken b0 the
Muara Gembong police atation. The police subsequently denied that Saipin had
aver heen detalned;
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{g) Paijan, alias Buang, died on 2 Decenber 1387 in the police station
in Tanah Jawa, after having been arrested on 30 Movember 1%87 by the
Tanah Jawa EKaramil and taken to the district office in RAfdeling 1, where he
had allegedly been tortured.

135. The Special Rapportenr reguested informaticn on the above-mentioned
allegations apd in particular on any investigatlons of those cases, including
autopsles,; and any measures taken by the authorities to bring those
regponsible to justice and prevent further occurrence of =zuch deaths,

139, On 4 January 1389, a reply was received from the Government <of Indonesisz
stating that, with regard to the prisoners involved in the 19535 attempted
coup, the sentences of those convicted of treason were cartied out in total
conformity with the due process of the law and in accordance with Indonssian
criminal law apd procedures., Tt was also stated that, throughout the trials
of the defendants who were involved in the abortive coup, the courts had
adhered 0 and implemented, inter alia, the principles of presumption of
innocence, rule of law, open and public trial, fair compositlicon of the court,
armd guarantes of the rights of the defendant to legal counsel and to appeal
for ¢lemency, It was Further stated that the trials were indeed falr and open
ke the public and the press,; that those convicted had had the right toe appeal
for clemency to the Fresident of the Republic and that their agpeals had heen
relected on the grounds of the gravity of the crimes, az they had been
directly lovelved in instigating and <arrying out the abortive coup which had
resulted in considerable loss of life and inflicted much suffering on the
Indenesian pecple. Accordind to the zeply, the seemingly long delay in
carrying out the executions was due toc the time needed by the judiciary and
the executive to ascertaln that justice was really upheld., It was also stated
that the megnitude of the crimes, which involved several thousand perszons,
required a congiderable time for trial and clemency proceedings, and that, in
fack, the defandants ware afforded every legal avenuoe, It was Further stated
that the sentences were carried out only after all legal reccurse had been
completely exhauvsted ang after those convicked wore given the opportunity of
weeting their famillie=s and relatives &nd that their burials were carried cut
in accordance with thelr religious beliefs. In conclusion, it was staked that
the Government firmly balieved that there was no question of summary ok
arbitrary exacution.

140. on the same day, ancther reply was received with regazd to the situstien
in Bast Timor, skating that the true sjituation prevailing there was as shown
by the findings of hwmanitarian organizations, such as the Internatiomal
Committee of the Red Croes (ICRC). The reply alse mentioned the findings of
the Chief Minister of the Rustralian Northern Tarritory whe had lad a
delegation of officlials, jomenalists and Timorese to the province of

East Timor frowm 9 to 11 Hovember 1988, It wes stated that the party had found
ng repression; no atarvation and no reatrictions on freedom of movement and
religion, The reply alsc referred to "the Uplted States State Department's
categoric rejection of the allegations by a number of United States
Congressmen and Senators of abuses of human rights in EBast Timoe™. It was
alsc stated that the province had been officially opened as of 1 Japuary 1989
and thus Eas:t Timorese rezidernts were free ko Eravel without restriction and
entyry restrictiona for outsidera had been Lifted,

141. On 13 January 1989, the Special Rapporteur met the Permanent
Represantative of Indonesia tc the United Haticons Office at Geneva.
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Iran (Islamic Republic of)

142, Cables were sent to the Government of the Islamic Republic of Iran

on 26 hugust, 14 September, 11 and 15 Hovember, 1, 8, 5, 20 and

23 December 1988 concerning allegations that since July 1988 a larges number of
prisoners, said ko be mambers or supporters of groups or organizations
apposing the Gavernment, had been exacuted and several others were facing
imminent execution in various parts of the country. Aaccording to information
received, a number of prisoners had their sentences of imprisonment changed to
tha death sentence or ware executed even though their terms of imprisonment
had been completed. The Special Rapportaor, mentioning a total of some

15¢ cases of prisoners whose names had bean received, appealed to the
Government on purely humanitarian grounds bto ensure that the right to Life of
thoze per=ons was protected and requestad information on the aforement ioned
Cases,

143, On 13 January 1989, a cable was sent concerning 3102 persons who might be
facing itmminent exacntion. According to the information, these persons, as in
the cases comminicated to the Government by the previous cables, had already
servad or were currently secving sentences of impriscmment. It was allegsed
that many of the persons in questicn ware tartured and deprived of visite from
their Eamilies.

L44. In view of persistent raports reaceived that several thousand persons had
been exacuted withcout trial or with a trial of a summary naturce, the

Special Rapporteur appealed to the Government to ensuce that the right ko life
of the abova-mantioned persons was protected as provided for in the
Intarnational Covenantk on Civil and Political Rightz, He alszo requested
information on the above-mentionad cages ag well as any information on the
fate of the parsons mentionad in hiz previous cablas, 22 follows: cable of
26 August concerning 12 perzons, cable of 1 Hovember concerning

Ali Akbar Shalgoolney and Adel Talebhi, cable of 11 November concerning
Fapreldoun Farcughi, ¢able of 15 Wovember concerning 24 persons, cable of

1 December conferning 55 perzons, cable of § Decamber concarning

Soraya Ali Mohammadi, cable of 9 December concerning Monireh Rajavl, cable of
2 December concerning 21 persons and cable of 23 December 1988 concerning

43 persons.

145. On the same day, the list of 302 persons was communicated to the
Parmanant Mission of the Islamis Republis of Iran to the Dnited Nations OFfice
ak Geneva.

146, On 9 November 198R, a lettar was sent to the Government transmitting the
allegation that, since July 1988, a largs number of prisoners had been
executed in varioizs parte of the country, without trial or with a trial of a
summary nature. The wvictims allegedly lncluded members and aupporters of
organizations and qroupa opposing the Government, and also Eardish prisonera,
The Special Rapporteur described by way of exawmple the fallowing allegationsg

{al On 10 July 1988, 10 persons accused of being "counter-—
reyvaluticnaries and Ifagl sples” were eXecuted;

{b] On 20 July 1988 about 20 persons belonging to political opposition
groups ware axacuted in Evin Prison. The victims included three memberas of
the Tudah Party and a member of the People's Fedaivan Crganization of Iran
(majoricy] .
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{¢] Alleged collaborators with the membars of the People's Mujahadin
Organization of Iran (PM}I) weare publicly exeocuted in Kangawvar, Bakhtaran and
Izlampabad—a~Gharh, According to the official account, 15 PMOI supporters were
executad on about 5 August 1983, They itcluded seven persons executed om
I Awgust 1288 In Bakhtaran and one parsom on 3 Auogusgt 1988 in Ilamy

{d] ©On 28 July 1988, 200 prisoners said to be PMOI sympathizers, were
executed in Evin PFrison. In Machad, 50 other PMCI sympathizers were executed;

(2] On 14, 15 amd 16 August 1988, 560 corp=es wers transferred from Evin
Prizon to the Behacht Zahra cementecy;

{f} It was further allaged that on the night of 15716 May 1988 a large
number of Iragl prisoners of war were found killed, their feet bound with
ropes, in the Mawat reglon in nocthern Iraq.

147. The Speclal Rapporteur requested informatlon on the alleged occurrance of
summary or arbitrary executions and in particular the lagal proceedings
followling which the alleged executions might have been carried out.

148, At the time of preparation of the present report, no reply had been
ragaived from the Government of the I2lamic Republic of Itan.

Irag

149, On 6 April 19%8B, a cable was sent to the Government of Iraq concarning
the allegation that, ¢n 16 Match 1988 in the towns of Halabja, Serwan, Fhormal
amd the surrourling villages in northern Iraq, more than 2,000 clvilians,
mastly women and children, were killed during the air-raids carried out by the
Iragqi Air Porce using chemical and incendiary weapons, Purther loss of
givilian lives in the abova-mentioned areas was feared.

150. On 5 Septenber 1%BB, anothar cable was sent Lo the Government of Irag
concerning the allegatiom that, at the epd of August 1983, in the Dahok area,
a large number of civilians, including women and children, were killed in
aperations carried out by the government forces uaing chemical weapons.
Forther loas of ecivilian lives was faaraed.

152. In bkoth cables, the Special Rapporteur appealed to the Government on
parely humanitarian grounds to gnsurae that the right o 1life of aolvliians in
the affected area? was protected in every poasible manner, and requested
information concerning the above-mentioned cases.

152, Om 1l awgust 1938, a cable was sent to the Govermment of Irad concerning
the allegation that three Iragi nationals residing in Egypt, Abdul Amir Azhab
Al Ruba'ay, Sadik Saleh Mahdi and Ahmad Mchammed Mahdi Said, who were said to
have been sentenced to death in 198Z, were detained by the Egyptian
authorities and hanmded over Lo the Iragi avthorities on 5 Awgust 1988, It was
alleged that thelr death sentences might be carried out. '

153. The 3pecial Rapporteur requestad informaticn on the above-ment lomed
cases, in particular on the charges, trial and procedures lsading to their
conviction and sentencing.
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154, On 28 July 1988, a letter was sent to the Government of Iraq trapsmitting
the allegation that hundreds of pergonz were executed withoot trial or after
trials of a summary nature by the Revolutlonary Court or ad hoc special courts
following procedures without the =afeqguards for a fair trial, rotably withouk
the right of the defendant to appeal to a higher tribunal, Among the wictims
were civilian members of the Eurdish ethnie minority, including women,
children and e]derly pecple and ospponents of the Govarnment.

155, The Special Rapporteur described by way of example some alleged cases as
follows;

{a} Thirty-one Furds, including five persons under 18, weare executad

after having been sentenced to death by a military court following summary
proceedings, nins of them on 18 Wovembs=r and esight on LY Decspber 1987 in
Fa'ideh Garrizon, ard 14 on 28 Dacember 1997 in Mosul Training Campj

{b) On 12 May 1987, in Sulaymaniyvaheiqht Kurds were publicly axecuted
without trial,

{¢) On 19 Angust 1987, two sembers of the KHurdistan Dewmocratic Party
{(EDP) were publicly execoted in Sersehk bacracks and in September 1387 anather
was execited in Eirkuk prizon without trial;

{d} On 11 Hovember 1987, over 100 Kurds from the village of Jiman,
Kickuk Province, were supmarily executed by security forces afker
house-to—honss searches;

{e} Between 14 and 18 Hovember 19387, 32 Kprds from Shaglawa, arbil
Province, including two minors aged 14, were sumbarily executed;

(f] On 18 Novembsr 1987, 'abd al-'Aziz 'Abdallab Othman, a member of the
Kurdistan Popular Democratic Party (KEPDP), was executed in Abu Sharaib prizong

{g] ©On M) and 1! Derember 1987, more than 150 prisoners, including
minors aged from 14 to 17, wers executed in Abu Charaib prison;

(h) Betwean Hovenbar 1987 and January 1988 five members of the Kurdiatan
Socialiat Party-Irag {ESP-1) were executed in Arhil without charge or krial;

{i) Or 17 Junuary 1988, Sayed Mahdi al-Hakim was killed in Ehartoum by
an sgenht sent by the Iragi authorities.

156. The Special Rapporteur regquested information on the alleged occurrence aof
sunmary or arbitrary executions and in particular on the legal proceedings
Eollowing which the alleged executionz might have baesn carried out.

157. On 9 Hovenber 1988, another letrer was sent to the Government of Irag
transmitting the allegation that, on B Ootobar 1983, 4B persons belonging to
the Eurdish minority died in attacks by the Iragi Ailr Porce asing chemjoal
weapons over villages in the Hawia and Chemi-Razan area in the Province of
Kirkuk. On 1l Dcotaober 1988, 11 pereone allegedly Aied in a similar attack in
the area of Sheikh Bizeni.
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158. The Special Rapporteur reguested information on the cases, and in
particular on any investigations made and any measures taken by the
avthorities and/or the judiciary to establish the facte ant bring those
responsible to justice.

15%. On 5 September 1988, a note was received from the Government of Irag,
tranemitting an official statement lssued on 2 Septamber 1988 in Baghdad which
strongly denied the use of chemical weaponz in the north of Irag.

160, On 10 Septembar 1988, information wag made available by the Permanent
Miggion of Irag eo the ¥nited Xations OfFlce at Geneva concerning the alleged
nge of chemical weapona by Irag. According te the informatlon, a Turkish
Foreign Ministry spokesman had announced that, in the light of the tests and
examinationa conducted, there wag no proof of the use of chemlcal weapons by
Iracq,

16l. On 14 September 1988, a note was received from the Government of Irag
tranamitting two decisiona promulgated by the Iragi Revolutionary Command
Council on & and & September 1988, concerning the granting of a general
amnesty to fugitive and convicted Kurds and political prisoners.

162, On 28 December 1982, a reply was raceived from the Government of Irag ko
the Special Rapporteur's letter of 9 Hovamber 1988 {mne¢ para., 157), reguesting
him to fuenizh the names of victime 50 that the Government conld provids a
reply.

163. On 11 Jenuary 198%, the Speclal Rapporteur met the Represzentative of the
Govarnment of Irag.

164. On 12 January 1989, a reply was received from the Governmant of Ireg,
stating that, with regard toc the cases of three Iragi nationals said to be
undetr sentence of death, and handed over b0 the Iragi avthoritiezs by the
Egyptian suthorities (sea pars. 152), Sadik Mahdi and Ahmad Mohammed Mahdi
were currently in Irag, residing undey the same conditions as any other Iragi
citizen and no legal zctlon had been taken against them. As for tha third
person, Abdul Amir Azhalr Al-Ruba'ay, it was stabted that he had been Outzide
the country since 1981 of his own free will for medical reasons concerning hia
wife and had not returned. With regard to the allegation comsunicated to the
Government by the Specilal Rapporteur on % Hovember 1988, the reply, refecring
to the Government's reply of 28 December 1988, stated that it was not poszikle
for the competent authorities to give answers about unknown peopla and
requested the Special Rapporteur to provide the Government with accurate
information so that the zuthorities could provides an answar,

Iarael

165, ©n 28 July 198%, a lekter was sent to the Government of Israel
tranemitting the following allagations.

166, Since 9 Decenber 1%87, over 160 Palestinians in the West Bank, Gaza and
East Jerusgalem, including women and children, had been killed by members of
the Iscasl Defance Force {IDPF). Many of them were reportedly shot during
confrontations between IDF and Palestinian protesters. Some othara, however,
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had reportcedly not been engaged in wviolent demonstrations when they were
killed, Others allegedly died as a result of severe blows received from
eocldlers. A list of 166 victims was received by the Special Rapporteur. 1t
was alleged that live ammunition was uszed excessively degpite strict
guidelines on the rules of engagement, Since the gunidelines on the use of
live ammunition had been changed, in March 1988, permitting soldiers to shoot
directly at Palestinians who attacked them with petrol bombs, the incidence of
fataltities had markedly increased. It wag also aileged that few cases of such
deaths were adeguately investigated and that those found responsible received
only light punistment, It was further alleged that, since December 1987, at
least 17 Palestinians had been szhot dead by Izsraeli settlers and two Israelis
had heen killed, one army reservist by a Palestinian and a 15-year-old girl
accidentally by & settler during a confrontation between gettlers and
Palesgtinian willagers., In addition, it wa=z alleqged that tear-gas was misused
by members of IDF and had consequently caused or contributed to the death of
more khan 40 Palestinians, Victims were said to be those who were especially
vulnerable to tear—gas inhalation, such az bables and elderly as well as sick
persons. The Spaclal Rapporteur described seven casas of wvictims among those
who had alleqgedly died after having been heavily exposad to tear-gas.

187, On 9 Wovenber 1988, another letter was sent to the Govermment of Israel
concerning the allegation that, from the beginning of the uprising in the
occupied territories in Decemher 19687 to the heginping of Saptember 1988, some
250 Palestinians had died as a result of the action taken by IDF, The
majority of the victims were 2aid £o have been shot dead during confrontations
between IDF and Palestinians. Others had allegedly died as a result of
suffocation from taar—-gas and beating. In addition, during July and

August 1988 caveral more Palestiniane allegedly died while in the custody of
the Israsli authorities. The Special Rapporteur described four such cazey
which had allegedly occurred in July and 3ugust 19838,

1a8. In both letters, the Special Rapporteuy, requested information on the
alleged accurrence of fummary or arbitrary exepukichz2 and, in particolar, on
any invesrigations of these cages, including autopsie=, and any measures taken
by the avthoritliee to bring thoze respongible to Justice and prevent further
occurrence of soch deaths,

169, On 10 January 1989, a cable was sent to tha Government concerning

Soha Bechara who was allagedly arrested on Lebanese tarritory and acousged of
having made an attempt on the life of aAntoine Iahad, "General of the

South Lebanase Army™. Expressicns of concarp were received by the

Special Rapporteur that she might be handed owar to the "South Lebanese Army”
which would allegedly mean that har life was in danger.

170. The Epecial Rapporteor appealad to the Government of Iscael on a purely
humanitarian bazis to anzure that the right o life of the abova~mantioned
pereon wag protected and requested information on the case,

171. At the time of preparaticn of Ehe present report no reply had been
received from the Government of Israel.
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Jamaica

172, Onr 15 Wovenber 1988, a cable was sent to the Governmant of Jamaica
concetning three cases of imminent axecoution of three prisoners namad

Rudolph Walker, Ezekiel Pryce and Lenford Hamiliton. It was alleged that the
three could not file an application for leave b0 appeal to the Jndicial
Committee of the Privy Council in Lopdon as legal counsel waz not avallable to
prepare such appeals and represgent them. It wags aleo alleged that the Court
of Appeal of Jamaica had rejected appeals in the cases of Lenford Hamilton and
Fudalph Walker, without aiving any written reasons for its decislons. In the
case of Ezekiel Pryce, existence of a written judgement waz allaegedly not
confirmed by the relevant authorities.

173. The Special Rapporteur appealad to the Goavernment on purely humanitarian
giounds to stay their execution for the time being and to ensure that the
rights of the above-mentioned persons were protected throughout the legal
proceedings, and requested information on the legal proceedings comcernimg the
above-=mentioned cases.

174. Subsequently, the Special Rapporteur learned that the three had baeen
granted a stay of execution.

175. Bt the time of preparation of the present report no reply had been
received from the Govermment of Jamaica.

Jordan

176. On 29 June 1988, a cable was gsent to the Govecrnment of Jardan concerning
four cases of deaih sentence. According to information received, Fa‘'eq Saleh
‘Add Al-'Aziz al-Salti, Tayel *aAbd Al-Halim Mahmad Al-Salti, Faisal *aAli
Mustafa Al-Salti and Muhammad Rhnad Mustafa Al=Salti were sentenced to death
on 21 June 1968 by the Military {Jourt.

177. The Speclal Rapporteur referred to a note dated 25 April 1988 from the
Government of Jordan concerning the cases2 of three persons sentenced to death
by the Milictary Court, mentioned in his last report (E/CH.4/1988722,

paras. 46-47), and stated that it confirmed that there was noe right of appeal
edajnst verdicts of the Hilltary Court. Stating that it still remained a
natter of serious concern that the Military Court did not grant the right to
appeal tc a higher tribunal, the Special Rapporteur requested that the matter
be looked into and that the right to life of the four persons be protected, in
accordance with the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights and
Economic and Social Counci]l resolution 1384750,

176. On 17 October 1988, a reply was received from the Govermment of Jordan,
stating that the trials of the four persons had been conducted in accordance
with the judicial precedures and the legislation in forpe. It also stated
that the courts were presided over by highly ¢ualifled professional judges and
that the proceedings before those courts 4id not differ from those in other
civil courts with regard te the guarantee of the rights of the accused, It
further stated that death sentences passed by the Mjilitary Court wete executed
only after they had gone thrcugh 2 number of stages in which they were
carefully scrutinized axz a safeguard for the convicted persons and that such
sentences required ratificatlon Ly the Prime Minister and the King.
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179. Subsequently, thae Special Rapporteur learned that thres of the Foar
parsons had basn executed on 19 July 1988 and the fourth, Muhanmad Ahmad
Mustafa Al-Salti bad had his sentence commuted.

Manritania

180, On 23 Movember 1988, & cable was sent ko the Goavepment of Maoritania
concerning a4 cerkain number of prissners, lncluding Ibeahim Sare who, detained
for polirical reasons at Oualata, ware alleged to ba gravely ill dus to
inadequate pricon conditions, in particular enavailability of #edical care.

It was alleged that threes other prisoners, Tene Youssouf Guoeye, Chief Warrant
Officer Ba Alassane Oumar and Lieutenant Abdul Ghoudouss Ba, died of illness
in the recent past in similar conditicns.

1581. The Special Rapporteur appealed to the Government on purely humanitarian
grounds to take the pecessary measures to protect the prisonera detained at
Dualata and redquested information on the above-mentioned cases and in
patticular on any investigation carried out or measure taken to guarantee the
welfara of those persons.

182, On 28 July 13BE, a letter was sent to the Government of Maoritania
transmitting the allagation that on 6 December 1987 three cfficers of the
Mauritanfan armed forces, Lisutenants Saidy Ba, Amadou Sarr and Saidou Sy,
wers allegedly executed after having been sentenced to death on

1 Decembar 1987 by the Cour spéciale de justice (gpecial court of justice) on
gharges of plotking to overthrow the Government. It was alleged that Lfherae
was no right to appeal to a higher kEribunal.

183, The Special Rapporteur reguested information on the alleged cases of
summary or arbltrary executions and in particelar on the lagal proceedings
following which the alleged executions might have been carried out.

134, At the time of preparation of the present report no reply had been
received from the Government of Mauritania.

Mexico

185. On 13 September 1988, a reply was received from the Government of Mexlco
goncerning the alleged killing of 10 peasants from Ilamatldn, Veracruz, on

2T April 1987, which was mentioned in the Speclal Rapporteur's lasi report
{E/CN.4/1%88/22, paras. 128-130}. According to the reply, the
Sacretary-Gensral of tha Veracruz State Government reported that the lncidents
had originated in disputes between the members of two local families and no
political conflict was involved, It was stated that nine persons died az a
raesult of the incident. CQCriminal procesdings were inatituted in the Court of
First Instance of Mixed Juriediction, which issued a detention order against
five persons, and an arrest wacrant against 34 fugitives, It was further
stated that on 18 April 1988 the five prisoners wers sentenced to 20 years'
imprisomment and a £ine of 40,000 pesos in ¢ash and that the convicted men had
sought Leave to appeal, which was granted. The caze was currently pending at
the Higher Courk of Justice.
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Nitcaragua

is6., Om 28 July 1588, a letter was sent to the Government of Nicaragua
concerning zlleged killings of civilians by the security forces in the
cankinuing armed conflict bebtween the government forces and the Conkra
rebels. The Special Rapporieur described the Eollowing incldents:

(2] Inm May 1987, eight farmer= from the Uhd district, near the Tuma
River, Department of Zelaya, were allegedly killed bw =oldiers frem a unit in
the tosn of Matiguds, Department of Matagalpa. On 16 September 1987,

Pable Bntonic Manzanares Lépez, aged 12, from the same vwillage was allegedly
killed by soldiers from the same unit. Purthermore, on 1 October 1987,
Heriberto Ldpez and Punic Méndez SAnchez, from the same village, wers
allegedly killed by scldiexrs from the same unit. A boy named Abelino Bscorcia
Garcia was killed when he stepped on a mine &llegedly planted by the soldlers;

(B} On 4 September 1987, in the diastreiet of La Canpanz, Department of
Chontales, Maria Eufrasia Ledn Estrada was killed in her house by government
forces who were allegedly looking for anti-govermnment forces in the victim's
hayaey

i) On 1 and 2 November 1987, in E1 Carril and E1 Mojdn, Department of
Jinotega, Marvin Herndndez, a farmer from £l Carril, and Inocercio Sonzdlez
REodriguez, a farmer from EL Moddn, were allegedly arcested and killed by
soldiers of the Swift Hunter Oscar Trucios Battalion;

{d} ©On 9 Pebruary 1988, in the locality known as "Cafio de kgua®, in the
Copalax districr of Rio Blanco, Department of Matagalpa, Paula Fuiz Ruiz was
killed, allegedly by a mamber of the government foroes;

(2} On 16 Fekruacy 1963, in a place known as "Ta Cuesta del Coyol®,
Depar rment: of Matagualpa, Walter Antonio Silva, wag allegedly killed by an
officer of the government forces:

(£} On 17 March 1983, in a place known as "La Mica®™, in the El Silencio
district, Department of Chontales, Jorge Alejandro Rojas Urbina was found
dead. It was alleged that Rojas, a former Contra rebel, was killed by four
agenhts of the State Security after he had refused to continue collaborating
with them in identifying cther Contra rebels.

(g) On 16 March 1988, in La Frescura district, Department of
Rio San Juan, José Félix Lago Soto, was killed by members of the
Parira Altamirano Battalionj

fhl ©n 1% March 1988, in the Arimas district of the Acovapa
Jurisdiction, Department of Chontales, Fidel Anastasic Garcia Savilla was
killed, allegedly by mambers of the Gaspar Garcia Laviana Battalion.

187. In additlon to the foregoing, a considerable nomber of civiliansz,
including children, were allegedly killed by the Contra rebels when they
attacked co-operative farms, buses and private howses. The Special Rapporteur
recelved information concerning such incidents, including the names of the
victing.
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188, On % Hovembar 1988, another lattar was gent Lo the Government of
Hicaragua transmitiing alleged sases of killing by government Forces which
ware said to have coourred sinee the beginning of 1388:

{a) On 17 January 1988, in the village of El Chile, jurisdiection of
San Ramén, Department of Metagalpa, four memberz of the Cruz Mairena family
were allegedly shot dead by members of the Ssndinlsta Harmanos Sinchez
co-oparative.

(b} On 27 January 1988, in the Matiquis region, Pélix Manuel Riza, was
allegedly detained by a qgroup of govermment soldiers. A week lzter his
mitilatad body was found near his house;

(e} On 14 March 1988, Cruz Castilla, was allegedly deatained by troopa
from the La Patriota army baze near Apantilles. His body was reportedly found
A weak later with stab wounds and macks of torture:

(@) On 21 March 19%8%, Mateo Lanzas, Vicenta Lanzaz, Juan Igle=zia,
Horvin Pérez and Anacstasio Martinmez were alleqgedly arrested by soldiers from
the ILa Patriota base. Next day thelr bodies were found with ztab wounds)

(e} Dn 26 March 1988, three kilometres from the El Coral village,
Department of Chontales, Cruz Teodolinda Sequeira Urbina, Abraham Sanchex, and
hiz father Pedro Sanchez, were allegedly killed by two soldiers)

(£} On 26 April 1088, the mother of Edvy Moigés Barrera Morales, agad 23,
was 4dllegedly informed of his death in a confrontation with police aftar
having attacked a taxi at km 15 on the Ledn-San Isidro highway. His body was
said to have boan batterad and decapitated:

(g} On & May 1988, in Managua, Francisco José Loper Herndndez was found
dead in a strest with a bullst wound; security forces were suspacted of the
killing. N2 investigation was alleged to have been carried ont so farg

fth} On 20 May 1988, it was anncunced that Carlos Hools Downs, from
Bluefields, Zelaya, had been killed at the Bluefields Command of the
government forces. It was allaged that his body showed signe of torture and a
bullet wound in the pelvis;

(i! ©On 23 May 1988, Roger Francisco Poveda Osorio allegadly died at the
military baze in Sumubila, Tasbha Pri, Pusarto Cabezas, Zona Especial I, Zelaya
Horta. Althouqh hiz death was reportedly explained as sueicide, his bady
allagedly hore marks of tartura;

{1} om 24 hpgust 1938, in Puerto La Esperanza, Valeriano Terres Gomez, a
membar of the municipal council of Valle de Wapi in tha E) Rama jurizdiction,
wag allegedly shot dead by Sandinista supporters.

18%, In addition to the Enrégoing* & ocongidarable tntmbar of civitiians,
incloding children, were killad by Contra raebels, Among cases of such allszged
killingz received by tha Special Rapporteur waz 20 inoldent on 16 April 1948
in Cerro Colorado, Matiquas, Department of Matagalpa in which a group of

il Contras belonging to the September 15 reglonal ¢ommand attacked a house and
killed Rigoberto Lopaz Ramos, agad 1, and Relna Isabal Lopaz, aged 14,
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140, In both letters, the Speclal Rapporteur requested information on the
above-pentioned cases, and in partlcular on any investlgations made and any
meazures taken by the authorities andfor judiciary to establish the factz and
bring those responsible to justice,

191. On 7 Hovember 1988, a note was recalved from the Government of Wicaragua
transmitting infoarmation concarning the case of Fredy Eduarde Garcla Torrasz
which had been comminlcated te the Gavernment by a letter dakted

& November 1987, According to the information, the investigation carried out
on the case establizhed that Garcia Torres, had been arreszted op L7 May 1987
and that his health had detericrated in prison without the conpet=nt
authorities taking the requisite steps to provide him with the medical
aszistance he required. &5 a result there was coriminal liability whigeh Eell
within the jurisdiction of the military court. On 20 April 1988, the Court of
Pirst Instance of the Managua regional circuit found two members of the armed
forees guilty of homicide. The defendants were sentenced to one year's
deprivation of liherty and the accessory penalities of eivil interdi¢tion and
sugpension of their ecivil rights,

Hepsl

192, On 2 Rovember 1988, a letter was sent to the Government of Wepal
concerning the allegation that on 13 December 1987 on the lefb bank of the
River Rankal near Suarunga village, Jhafa distcict,; Laxmi Panday, a student,
aged 19, was shot dead by the police. It was alleged that, after a lawful and
peaceful me¢eting on the bank of the River Rankal where about 500 people had
gathered, the police were confronted with a qroup of seven persons and one
pelice officer Ffired point-blank abt Papday without warning., Mo official
investigaktion was reported to have been held into Panday's death.

193}, The Special Ragpportenr requested information on the alleged pase of death
and in particular on any investigation of the case, including an autopsy, and
any measutres taken by the authorities to bring those responsible to justice
ard prevent further ocourrence of such deaths,

194, At the time of prepavation of the present report no reply had heen
received from the Government of Hepal.

Higeria

195, On 28 July 1938, a letter was sant to the Government of Nigeria
transmitting the allegation that during the past several years a nunber of
personad had been exetuted after having heen Bentenced to death by Robbery and
Firearms Tribunals, under whose procedure the defendant had mo right of appeal
tc a higher tribunal. Tt was further alleged that at least 145 persons wete
had bean axecuted after having been convicted of armed robbezry in 1987 and
that during the first three months of 1988, 27 parsons were executed,
including 12 persons in Januoary 1988 at Benin City vrison in Bendel State,

A number of othars wers gaid to be atill facing execution,

196. On % ¥November 1988, anothar letter was sent tranamitting the allegation
that, between January and August 1988, at least 29 persons had beah executed
afeter having been sentenced to death by Robhery and Pirearms Tribunals,
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187. It was further allaged that several cthers, sentenced to death by Robbery
and Firearms Tribunals, were facing execution. The Sperial Rapporteur
desarihed poxne examples ofF cuch cases as follows:

{a} In Jung 1988, 13 persons aged betwesn 16 and 1B were gsentenced to
death by the Robbery and Firearm= Tribunal in Ikeja, Lagos State. 1t was
alleged that although Eobbery and #Firearms Tribunals were special courts
ont2ide the ordinary court system, they followed ordinarcy criminal procedure
except whare gpecifically empowsred to do otherwise and that there was oo
cpecific provision allowing Robbery and Pirearms Tribunals to =entence
Juveniles to death. It was said that under ordinary criminal law, no juvenile
under the age of 17 might be sentenced to deaths

by On 10 June 1988, Danda Balogun, a labourer, was sentenced to death
by the Robbery and Firearm= Tribunal in Ovo Statep

(e} In late June 19B8, Frank Gregory Dsang and Joseph Otuba were
sentenced to death by the Eobbery and Firearms Tribunal in Ognja, Croas River
State;

(<1} In early July 19BB, London Uwajeya, a =student, Samuel Utuedor, a
driver, and Ambrose Qgbanefe, an electriclan, were sentenced to death by the
Bobbery and Firearms Tribunals in Warri, Bendel State.

194, The Special Rapporteur reguested information on the above-mentioned
cases, ard in particular on the legal proceeding® following which the alleged
execitions might have been carried ogt.

199, On 13 January 1989, the Special Rapporteur met a2 representative of the
Government of Nigeria and received a reply to the effect that death sentences
wera passed only in proven and established cases of commission of the heinous
crime of armed tobbery. Armed Robbery and Firearms Tribunalc had been sat op
to try inter alia cases of armed robbery, and at thedir inception, had been
presided over by wilitary officers, However, the Tribunals were currently
presided ovar by High Court Jjudges and their procedure was the zame as that of
the ordinary courts. All accused persons were entitled to defence counsel
and, if the accused was found guilty and santenced to death by the Tribunal,
the sentences were normally reviewed bsfore their inmplementation and were
either confirmed or commuted to terms of imprisonment. In the case of

Ganiyu Ibrahim in Ewara State, the death sentence was comuted to Five years'
imprizonment. ¥igeria never exacuted juvenliles. The representative of the
Govermeent addad o the reply by stating that all cases communicated to the
Sovernment by the Special Rapporteur were under review.,

Pakistan

200, ©On 9 Hovember 1988, 2 letter was sant to the Government of Fakistan
transmitting the allegation that on 27 December 1987, amser ali, from
Ghangro Mori village, Sind Province, was found dead outside a2 house neatr
Hyderahad, after having been arrestad on 20 Decepbar 1987 with twe other meng
Gulab and Hiaz Machhi, and detalined at Hosri police station. Althoagh the
Folice reportedly claimed that Ameer Ali died of natural csuses, the two ten
detained together wlth him zliegedily wltnessed Aneer Alj being beaten by
police officers at the police station, Subsequeptly, on 25 Januacy 1988, the
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two ®men, the alleged witnesses of the beating of Amear Ali, were killed
togethar with Mazhar Machhi and Mohammad Ali, when police and army personnel
raided Ghangro Meori village and shot at people on a boat. It was reported
that on 17 February L9Bd a judicial inguiry into the incident of 25 January
was ordered by the Sind Govarpment.

201l. Tha Special Rapporteur requested informstion on the alleged deaths, and
in particular on any investiqations of those casea, including autopsiesa, and
any maasaces taken by the anthorities to bring those respongible to justice

and pravent Eurther ocecurrence of such deaths.

202. At the time of preparation of the present report, no reply had been
received from the Government of Pakistan,

Peri

203. O 13 July 1988, a cable was gent to the Sovernment of Peru concerning
the alleged abduction of 12 parsong, said to be witnesses of Killings in
Cayara op 14 May 1588 (sees para, 210}, Thae 12 were allegedly abducted by a
group of nilitary patrolmen on 30 Juone and 3 July 19349 in Cayara, Department
of Avacucho.

204. In view of the circumstances of the above-mentioned incidentz, and in
particolar the alleged kxillings in Cayara on 14 May 19283, the Special
Rapportenr exprassed his concern for the life and security of thae 12 peraoms,
appealed to the Governmant to take every poasible measure to ensure the safaty
of the personz concernaed and reguested information on the casas, in particular
on any investiqation carried out by the appropriate authorities.

205, On 14 Ocitober 1998, anothet cable was sent congerning the alleged death
thraats in Saptamber 1988 in Avacuchk against Angela Mendoza de Ascarza,
President of the Asociacidn Kacional de Familiares de Secuestrados y
Detantdos-Degaparecidosd an las Zonas Declaradas an Batado de Emergencia del
Peru {ANFASEP) [(Hatiopal assogiation of relatives of abducted persong and
dizappeared detainess in the zones ander a state of emergency 1t Paruw and
Marioc Cavalcanti Gamboa, a manber of the Collega of Lawyers,

Z06. On 8 Hovamber 1988, a cable was aent to the Government of Paru concerning
the death threats to the families of Luisz Miguwel Pasache and Sicrates Porta
Solanc who were found dead in pdagust 1988 in the south of Lima, Tha twe
pereons welka allagedly killed by a paramilitary group called “Rodrigqo Franco%,

207. In both cablex, the Spacial Rapporter regquested information on the
Measures taken by the Govecrnment to probtect the lives of those who had been
threatened ,

Z0B6. Un 4 January 1989, a cable was sent to the Sovernment of Paru conc&erLning
the alleged killimg of the witnesses of the Cayara incidents and death threats
directad against Carlos Escobar Fineda. According to information recaived, on
14 Decembar 1938, two community officials of Cayara, Juatiniano Tinco Garcia
and Fernandina Palomino Quiape, were Killed together with Antonlo Félix

Garcia Tipe, the driver of a truck carrying pasasnoers, including the
above-mentionad two, by troops wearing black ski masks, The thiee were
allegedly the most recent victims awong at least aight persons who were killed
of dizappeatred after detention because of their testimony ta civilian legal
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officials inveatigating the deaths in Cayvara on 1i and 18 May 1288, or because
of thelr relationship with the eyewltnesses, In that connection, expressicans
of concern were recelved by the Special Rapporteur for the life of

Carlos #acobar Pineda who, as Speclal Commissioner, lnvestigated the killings
i Cayara and submlitted a repoct. Tt wag alleged that Escobar had been the
abjegt of harrassment and death threats. Purthermore, fear was expressed Lo
the Special Rapporteur for the life of Benedicta Maria Valenzuela Ocavo, the
wife of Justinianc Tirco Garcia.

209. The Special Rapporteur appealed to the Sovebnment to bake every pbossible
mzagure toe ensure the right te life and aecurity of the above-mentioned
persons and reguested information on the above-mentioned deaths, and in
pacticular on inveatigaticn of those cases,

210, On 28 July 1988, i letter was sent to the Government of Paru transmitting
the allegation that, on 14 May 1988, in the vwillage of Cayara, District of
Huancapi, Province of Victor Fajarde, Department of Ayacucho, at least

29 persons were allegedly killed by members of the military forees. According
Lo reports, the killings toeok place in the course of a connter-insurgency
operation ordered by the military commander of the region, following an
incident on 12 May 19%88, in which several military personnel had been killed
in an ambush in the locality of Erusco believed to have been set by members of
the Sendere Luminoso (Bhining path] gquerrilla group, The vietims allegadly
included schoolchildren, the headmaster of the local school and members of the
lacal cowncil, Some of the vickims were allegedly tortured before being
killad. The approximately 300 troops participating in the operation were said
ta ba from the military bases of Hualla, Canaria, Colca, Pampa Cangalle,
Cangalle, Huancapi and Huanca Sancos. Lists with names of alleged vietims of
the killings were given to the Special Rapporteur,

211, It was further alleged that, during Januwary and Pebruary 1988, in the
Jocalities of Chalhuanca [Pichirhun-Abaneay), Taguebamba and San Miguoel
(Tintay-Ayamarasz), a number of parsgons were killed by memhera of the wmilitary
foreces, During that period, the motilated bodien of three women, one of whon
was decapitated, were found in the area.

212. In addition to the foregoing, the Epecial Rapporteur described thres
incidents alleged to have taken place in January 1388,

213. On 9 Yovember 1988, ancther letter was sent to the Govarnment of Peru
tranemitting the allegation that, doring the psst year, incidanks of killipgs
by bath the govarnment forces and armed rebe) groups, such as Senders Luminoso
and the Movimientc Revolucionario Tupac Amaru (MRTA] (Tupac Amaru
Revolutionary Movement), allegedly continued, especially in the areas under a
state of efergency and administered by political-military commands. The
majority of tha victime were g2aid to be local willagers in those areas, who
were allegadly suspectad by the security forces of support for the guerrillas,
but a number of villagers were said to havae been killed alsoc by the rebal
aroups for their refusal to co-operate with them.

Z14. According to the Peruvian Senate's official statistice, during the period
from June to the middle of October 1928, 6874 politieally-motrivated killinas
socurrad,

21%. The Special Rappocteur deseoribed by way of example nine cazes,
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216, In both letkters, the Special Rapporteur requested information on the
alleged cases of summary or arbitrary executionz and in particular on any
investigations of those cases, including autopsies, and any measures taken by
the authorities to bring those responsible to justice and prevent further
occurrence of suwh deaths,

217, On 15 December 1988, a letrer was sent to the Government of Peru
concernlipg the proceedings of the Supreme Council of Military Justice in
regard ko the reported killing of 13 peasants, including two minors, on 22 amd
23 Dctober 1986, in Pomatambo and Pancee Alto, Provingce of vilcashuamén,
Department of Ayacucho, by mebbers of the Peruvian acmy. According to
reports, the Supreme Council of Miiitary Justice dropped the charges against a
nuaiber of military perscnonel in the case and terminated the penal proceedings
on 22 June 1988. It was also alleged that, in spite of appeals by the
families of the victims, theyY were not represented in the proceedingsa.
According to the sape reports, the Joink Command had stated earlier that the
investigation of the incident "established that acts occurred which constitute
infringements of the applicable regulations pertaining to the cperations of
the law enforcerent authoritiesn,

218. The Special Rapportenr reguested information on the legal proceedings of
the Supreme Council of Military Justice corcerning the above-mentioned casze,
in particular on its decision to acquit the military personnel originally
charged with the killings.

219. At the time of preparation of the present report no reply had been
received from the Government of Peru.

Philippines

220. On 28 July 1988, a letter was sent to the Government of the Philipplnes
trangmitting the allegation that during the past year unarmed civilians were
killed either by members of security forces, the Integrated Civilian Home
Defence Porces {ICHCF) or so-called “"vigilante™ groups, said to be acting with
Govermment aupport. Most of the victims were saild to have been suspected
supporters of the Hew People's Army (HPA) or memberzs of community or church
organizations. It was alleged rhat official investigations rarely led to
progecution due to such reasons as fear or intimidaticon of witnesses, lack of
co—gperatjon froem the military and lack of impartiality by milltary courts
vhich have jurisdiction over cases jnvolving soldlers and the police. In
addition, it was 2lleged that HpA was responsible for a number of killings of
soldiers, policemen and others, inciuding the killing of Secretary of Local
Government Jaime Ferrer in July 1987, Furthermore, during the local elections
held in the beginning of 1988 a pumber of perscons, incliing election
candidates, were killed.

221. The Special Rapporteur described by way of example 28 incidents of
killings during the period between February 1987 and January 1988, for which
the =security forcesz and paramllitary groups were allegedly responsibla.

222, On 9 November 1988, another letter was sent to the Government of

the Philippines concerning the allegation that, during the previous several
menths, killings in & summary or arbitrary manner by members of the armed
forces, paramilitary "vigilante® groups and unidentified armed men had
cantinaed,



Bl o4 2088720
page 42

223, The Special Rapporiedr desczribed by way of example nine incidenkts of such
killings which allegedlv occurred during the perilod betwsen December 1987 and
July 19288, inslwding the cases of three human rights lawyers killed in

June aped July 1988,

224. In both letters, the Special Rapporbeur reguested information on the
above-nentioned allegetionz and in particular on any investigations of the
cases, including autopaies, and any measures taken by the authorities to bring
those responsible to juetice and prevent further oogurrence of auech deaths.

235, On 20 December 1988, a latter was received from the Covernment of the
Philippines transmitting the following documents prepared by the Thilippine
Copmizazion on Human Rights:

{fa) Primer con the Philippine Commiasion on Human Rights;

{b} Statement on human rights issuesd by the Philippine Commission on
Human Rights and Guidelines on Visitation and the Conduct of Investigation,
hrrest, Detention and Ralated Cparations:

{£) Mannal of Services and Programmes of the Philippine Commizsion on
Human Rights:

{4} Consolidaked monthly acceomplizhment repork=s for Janumary-april 1988,

226. On 2] Decembeyr 1088, a raply was received from the Covernment
tranemitting case reports prepared by the Philippine Commission on Human
Rights on & number of alleged killinge, acs £ollows:

{a) BRBeocording o a Commission on Human Rightes (CHE} cagse report of
17 August 1988 concerhing the alleged killing of Andrés Ris and Manvel Dotollo
cn 30 Januvary 1988 ak Barangay Himacugeo, Hindang, Leyta, by a Philippine army
patrcl, a ream of CHR invesrigsrors wags Sent to invasrigate the killings.
Whila the affidavit of the witness interviswed by the CHE tesam was sufficient
to establish that the circumstances immediately prior to the killing of Rio
and Dotolle were nok in the pature of an armed encounter, as stated in the
official army report, it was not sufficient teo indict the members of the army
patrocl who had arrested and taken away the two persons. CHR was endeavouring
to cbtain sworn statemente from perscons who were reportedly ayewitnesses of
the killing, but were hiding in fear of their lives;

{b) BRecording to a CHR case report of 12 Bugust 198, the alleqed
killing of Fr. Carl Schmitz on 7 April 1988 at the Parisgh Convent of Barangay
Bolcl, Koronadal, South Cotabato, the Investigatring Officer of the
45eth Philippine Congtabulary {PC) stationed at Horonadal conduocted an
on-the«gpot investlgation of the case and reported that witnesses saw an ICHDF
member shoot Pr. Sehmitz to death. EBased on evewitness testimonies, the
Covmmanding Qfficex of the South Cotabato PC Command filed a criminal case
against the ICHDF member wikh the 11th Regional Trial Court, Branch 24, on
8 april 1988 for marder. Subsequently, a commitment order was issued on 11
Bpril 1988 for his detention at the provingial g9eol. It was established by
the investigation that the killing of Fr. Schmitz aroce from a personal grudge
and waz without any political motivation:
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{c) According to a OBR case report of 25 July 1988, the alleyed killing
of Alfonso A. Surigad, a huhtan righta lawyer, on 24 June 1988 at his homa in
Tabucanal, Pardo, Ceby Clty, the Hational Bureau of Investigation [NBI) as
well as CHR catrried out an investigation which rasulted in the arrest of a
p=rson, who, after having been apprised of his constituticnal rights, among
others, the right to remain sil=nt and tc be assisted by counsel, willingly
and fresly admitted under oath that he had killed Surigao under the
fnstructions given by a major of the PC Regional SBecurity Gnit in Cebu. The
PC major was subsequently placed under technical arrest by the military
anthorities and confined to barracks. A charge of murder was filed wikh the
Cabu City Fiscal's Office againat the defendant and his two companions and the
PC Juwlge Advocate—-Genaral was to initiate a preliminary investigation of the
charge of murder against the PC major. A petition wus filed with the
Preaident bto waive the court markial jucisdiction over the major and t0 have
hi teied simaltanecaaly with the defandant in a civil court. Mo walwver had
been issued at the time of preparation of the CHR case rgport. The other two
companiona of the defendant were still at large

(A} According to a CHR case report of 11 Awgust 1268, congerning the
alleged case of killing ©f Yicente Mirabuend, a human cights lawyer, ob
6 Pebrpary 1998 Ly two gummen at the public market in General Santos City, the
police authorities of General Santos City arcested one of the two alileged
qunmen on T March 1938 and the suzspect was charged in court on ths same day
and detained at the city gaol. Hiz companion was atill at large. The CHR
inveztigation reached the conclusziosn that Mirabuweno's killing did not result
from hig activities as a human rights lawyer. The CHR regional office was
directed to monitor the case and to report any significant development to Head
Office;

(e} Accarding to a CHR case report of 11 Auguat 1988, concerning tha
alleged case of killing of Ramos Cura, a lawyer, on 18 June 1988 1n Pampanga
by twor gnidentified ared men, a CHR tean was sent 0 investigate the case,
but the victim's widow refused to say anything out of fear for her safety and
that of her £amily. The victin's father and nephew, whe had reportedly
withessed the killing, had left their residence and their whereabouts were net
krvown. The phyzician to whom Cura was brought after being shot was also
killed. CHR waz keeping the investigation openg

(f] According t0 a CHR case report of % August 1988, concarning the case
of Rodiger de loa Santos, who was allegedly abducted on 21 February 1988 by
members of the Integrated Special Operations Group of the Pasay Police in
Halibay, Pasay City, and wazx found on 29 March 1988 in WValley Golf Club in
Antipolo, Rizal, and died in hospital on 23 April 1948, the CHR team
interviewed the only eyewitness to the abduction, who refused to give a
written affidavie and aloo zalid that he would refuse bto testify in court ount
of fear for hia life and that of his family;

{g] According to a CHR case report of 26 July 1989, concerning the
killing of Reynaldc D. Francisco and. the attempted killing of
Hilari< M., Bustamante, in March 1%BB, NBI and CHR had conducted khe
inveatigation in April 1988, The two men were abducted by unidentified armed
men oh 19 March 1988 in Malate, Manila and found on 21 March 1988 in Calaocan
City. Bustamante told the investigators that he and Prancisco had been
tortured by their abductors in Fatique uniforma, who had introduced themnselves
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aE menbers of the PC Capital Ragional Command ([CAPCOM}, and that they warae
then browght to Caloocan City by a blue CAPCOM car and thrown cut of the car.
CHR considered that the caze needed further investigation, since Bustamante
had mot fully recovared nor had he been able to identify any of hiz abductors.

Scmalia

227. On 9 February 1988, a cable was sent to the Government of Somalia
conrerning the death sentences iwmposed by the National Security Courk on

7 February 1988. According to¢ information received, the defendants, ifncluding
eight persons zentenced to death, had been detained incommunicado since their
arrest in June 19682 and =zome of them had been tortured during detsntlon. It
was also alleged that the Nakional Security Court had been composed of one
government. Minister and two military officers, that the presecuticn had
depended mainly on the confessions of the defendants which were said net to
have been submitted as written statements to the court, and that the
allegation of torture had not been examined by the conrt. It was Lurther
raparted that the right of appeal to a hlgher tribunal was not poessible under
the procedure,

228, The 5pecial Rapporteur requested the Goverpment to provide informatlon on
the above-mentioned casmes, in particular the proceedings of the Hational
Security Court, as a result of which the eight persons were septenced to death.

229, On 23 Rovember 1988, another ¢able was sent to the Government of Somalia
concerning the cases of five cadets who had allegedly been forcibly returned
from Egqypt to Somalia. According to information received, one of the five had
died as a result of tortura. Expreszions of concern were received by the
Special Rapporteur about the remaining four who were allegedly detajned
incommunicado without charge or trial, and whose whereabouts were said to be
WK O,

230. The Speclal Rapporteur appealed to the Government of Somalia to ensure
that the right to life of the above-mentioned four persons wam protected in
every poasible manner and reguested information on the alleged death in
detention of one of the [ive cadets, in particular on any jinvestigation
carried ouwt by the appropriate authorities and on the current situation of the
cemaining four.

231, On 13 Januvary 1989, a cable was sent to the Government of Somalia
concerning alleged indiscriminate bomkxing raids, possibly including the use of
chemical weapons, carcled out by the government forges on the three northern
towns of Harqgeisa, Berbera and Burao, reportedly causzing some 24,000 deaths,
According ko the informatlion, the internal arwed conflict ln the northern part
of the country had intenaified and a large numbar of civilians belonglng to
the Igsag =lan had allegedly been killed by government forces Iin a summary or
arbitrary manner.

232. The Speclial Rapporteur, expressing hiz concern for the life and safety of
the civilian population in the affected areas, appealed to the Sovernment to
take all necessary measzures to ensure that the right to life of every cltizan
was protecked, In addition, he requested information on the above-mentioned
allegation, and in partlcular on any investigation of the in¢cidenta in
gquestion a3 well as any measures taken to bring those responsible to justice
and proavent further ocgurrence of such deaths,



E/CN.4/19689,/25
page 45

233. On 9 Novenber 1988, a letter was sent to tha Government of Somalla
transmitking the allegation thakt, during the past year in the intarnal armed
conflict in the northern part of the country, a large numbar of clvilians had
allagaedly bean killad In indiscriminate bombardments by the governmant forces
or executed without erial or after a trial of a summary nature. The

Special Rapportear described by way of axample the following allagad incidentzi

{a} On 12 March 1988 in Galileh, following attacks by the Somali
Hational Movemsnt (SHM} in the arza, 16 man, mostly farmers and nomads, were
gosmarily tried and execuoted sbhortly atter being sentenced to death. On
22 March 1988, aix others were tried and executed in a similar mannarg

(bY ©On 31 May and 1 Juns 1938, in Aargeisa after the SHM attack on
31 May, 2l persons were executed in three separate incidents. The total
number Of persons execoted was alieged to be very high.

234. Sobsequantly the Special Rapporteur learned that on 11 Pebruary 1988 the
Prasident had commited the death sentences imposed on the eight persons by the
Haticnal Security Courk on 7 February 198E {Bee para. #27). Two of the eight
persons ware transfarred to house arpest and the other gix were given prison
tarms of 24 years.

235, At the time of preparation of the presant report npo reply had been
raceivad from the Government of Somalia.

South Africs

2436, On 1 Pebruoary 1988, a cable was sant to the Governmant of South Africa
concerning the alleged imminent execution of the so—called "Shacpeville six™,
whiy ware arrested in Movember 1984 in connection with the unrest and morder
which oceurrad on 4 September 19684 in Sharpeville and Sebokeng and sentanced
to death on 13 Decembar 1985 by the Pretoria Supreme Court. It was alleged
that the defendants had been tortured during dstention, that stakaments
extracted under torture had been admitted by the court as evidence against
them, that many of tha Eindings of the Court had been haged on the ayidence of
a single State witness and that most of tha evidence given by the defendants
thiad bean rejected by the Court.

2317, The Special Rapportewr, redquesting information on the oases, in
particular on the procesdings of the trials a= a result of which the B8ix
FEISONE ware 3entenced to degth, appealed to the Governmant on a purely
humanitarian bagis to stay their execution.

238. On 16 Macch 1988, another cabls was sant to the Sovernment of

South Africa, again concerning the Sharpmaville six, further information having
been recelved to the effect that the s5ix were scheduled to be axecuted on

18 March 19388,

239. The Special Rappoctent reiterated his appeal to stay the execution of the
six.

240, Subsequently, the Special Rapporteur learnaed that on 23 NHovember 1988 the
State President had commuted the death Bentences imposed on the "Shacpevilie
six™ to terms of imprisomnment varying from 18 to 25 years, AL the same Lime
he commuted the death santences imposed on =ix other people, incivding four
white police officers.
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24]1. On 18 Auguat 1988, a cable was sent to tha Governmant concerning
Melson Mandela who, according to reports, wasa gravely 111, During the
hearings conducted jointly by the Spacial Rapportenr and the Ad Hoo Working
Group of Experts on scuthern Africa in Augusir 1988, fears were aXxpresgssed to
tha Special Bapportaur that Heleon Mandela might not be receiving adequake
medical atktention and that his life might be in jeopardy.

242, The Special Rapporteur, expressing his congern, appealed to the

Bouth African Government, on a purely humanitarian basis, to ensure that
Mandela's right to life was protected and that steps were taken ko provide him
with evary possible medical care and attention.

2432, On 2B July 1988, a latter was =zent to the Government of South Africa
trangmitting the allagation that during the past year a large number of
parsong had been killed in wiclence in various partad of the country, and in
pacticular as a result of contimving conflicks between the Inkatha movement
and the supporters of the Upnited Democratic Fropt (UDF) in Natal. Aocarding
to one source, approximately 500 persons had been killed between the beginning
of 1987 and May 1988. In January 198B alona, a total of 10B persons wera said
to have been killed, and, according to some reports, the police had failed to
intarvens to prevent Killings during vialsnt incidents. It was alszo alleged
that several persons, said to be anti-apartheid activists, ware killed by
unidentified men. The Special Rapporteur desoribed, by way of example, the
following cases:

{a}) On 26 Janvarcy 1948 in Soweto, Godfrey Sicelo Dlowo was foum? shot
dead six days after he had been questioned at the police headguarters in
Johanneshburg about a televizion interview in which hbe reportedly described@ how
he had been tortured by the police in detentiorn)

i

{b) On 29 January 1988 in Halmoed near Welcome, Orange Free State,

Linda Brakvie was killed by unidentified men three days after his release from
6 wecks! detentfion withour charge,

244, In additlon, several perzsons, said to bea membere of The African Hational
Congress af South Africa {ANC) were Alleqgedly killed outside the countrcy by
unidentified men allaged to be under the control of the Government of

South Africa. The following casen were given as examples:

{al] In January 1988 in Manzini, Swaziland, Sipho Hgema was shot dead by
a black gurnman in a restauvrant;

(b} On 23 March 1968, in Maseru, Mazizi Magekeza was shot dead in a
hospital bed by & gunman who fiped through the window;

(e) Om 29 March 1988 in Paris, Dulcie September was shok dead by
unldentified gunmen.

245. Purthermore, on 28 Macch 1966, in the suburbs of Gaborone, four personz,
three of whem were said to be nationals of Botswana and one a refugese from
South Africa, were allegediy kKilled in & raid by membkers of the Scouth African
efence Forces,
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246, On 9 Wovember 1988, another letter was sent transmitting the allegation
that the death penalty was sxtensively used agalnst those convicted of
politically related murders of policemen, black township councillore and
suspactad police informers, OFfficial statistics allegedly showsd that the
death sentence was disproportionately imposed on the black populaticn by an
almost entirely white judiciary. BAs of February 1988, 267 parsons were said
to be under the sentence of death and by 11 June 1988 at least 71 of them had
reportedly been executed. Furthermore, in the casge of the conviction of the
Sharpeville six, the Appeal Court judgement, wpholding the trial court'a
decision, reportedly introduced an interpraetation of the legal principle ot
common purpose vhich potentially could spread the net of eriminal liability Lo
all participants in a demonatration ar riot. It was also alleged that sevaral
perzons were killed in violance in varioug parts of the coantry, in particular
in Matal, as a result of continuing conflicts between rival groups in black
tovnships., In a ngmber of incidents, mepber:z and supportars of UDF, the
Congress of Souwth African Trade Unicng [COSATU) and the Matal Crganization of
Women (KOW! were allegedly selected as targets for asaault. It was further
alleged that eeveral persons were killed by members of the police, The
Spegcial Rapporteur desgribed such casea as follows:

fa] On 26 November 1987 in Mamafukedo townsahip near Petrus Steyn in the
Crange Free State, Josias Tlaki, aged 15, was shot dead at his homa by
police, It was alleged that he was Killed while police were ordering his
family to vacate the house;

{b} Om 23 August 1987 in Bononi, Bast Ramd, Caiphus Nyoki, a studenk and
TDF membar, was shot deazd by policemen who raided his housel

fc) In early August 1%EBE in Soweto, Clement Gwiji, a ld4-year-gld high
achool stodent, was shot daad by the municipal police. According to the
police statement, the zhooting was to disperse the pupils who were throwing
stones at a delivery truck escorted by the police. Brewitnesses, however,
contasted the police statement;

{4} ©m 12 January 1988, Sithambele Zokwe waa zhot dead by the Transkei
Security Pelice in Butterworth shortly after having baen datained.
Subszequently, bt menbers of the Tranzkei Security Police wers reportedly
arrazted and Charged with murder)

(&) ©Th 2 March I%EB, in George, Southern Cape, Andile Robe, from
Sandkraal, died of head injuries caueed by severe beatings by police,

247. In both letters, the Special Rapporteur regquested information on the
above-mentioned allegations, and in particular on any investigations of the
casez, incloding avtopeias, and any measures taken by the asthoritiea to bring
those responsible to juatice and prevenkt further occurrence of such deaths.

248. On 30 December 1988, a reply was received from the Governmenkt of
South Africa to the effect that:

{a] The conflict between Inkatha and UDF continued to be a cause of much
unrest and tragedy in Matal. Since the middle of 1987, this conflict, which
mainly concerned the guestion of superiority and affective control in an area
which le traditicnally a Zulu stronghold, had sevecely escalated. The area
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had alwayz been one with a high crime rate. In the circumstances, the
South hfrican police, alraady strebched by the prevaliling emergency asitnation,
did their best to defuse and stabilize the situationg

(b) Godfray Sicelo Dlomos waz arrested on 12 June 1986 with =ix othar
youths on the campus of the Commercial Collsge in Soweto, following an
investigation intc attempted murder and arson. All six were charged but were
aciguitted on & January 1987. Dlome again came under attention after the
broadcasting of a CBS documentary in which a certain "Godfrey” made some
sansational actusations concerning the detention of ¢hildren., "Godfrey™ was
identified as Godfray Dlomo and onn 20 January L98B, he was cuestioned on his
involvement in the documantary. He 3aid that he had been invited to tea by
the Detainees Parant2 Support Committes (DPSC) where & man had asked him to
relate avents surrounding his detention foar videstaping. According to Dlomo,
he waz ifnstructed to say that he had been assaulted. Godfrey Dlomo then told
police that he was afraid of certain members attached to the Azanian People's
Organization (AZAPO] and since his life might be in danger, reguested that he
be taken to Ehotbkso Hoose, where the offices of the South &frican Couneil of
Churches ware located. He was not seen again, On 25 Janoary 1988, his body
was found in Sowekbo, It had three bollet wounds. Investlgations wore still
continuing)

{c) Gorden Linda Brakwis, aged 26, was dekained between 12 June and
17 Septembar 1987 on suspicion of inciting youkhs to arson and violence. He
wasg alse sought for acrmed cobbercy in which he had allegedly bes&n involved
during November Y386, He wag charged but found not gullty of robbery oh
3 Saptamber and raleased on 17 September 1387. His body was found on
29 January 1986. It was alleged by wiktnesses that Brakvis ard a friend had
bean attacked by three unknown men, cesulting in Brakvis' death.
Investigatione were still conkinuing. Sinece 1983, Mr, Brakvis had heen
gentencaed £or various criminal offences and had served an 18-monkh term for
robbery betwean December 1985 and June 1936;

{4} With regard to the other casas, the South African Government
repeatedliy denled involvement in the eliminatlon of people abroad, and said
that no evidence linking thosze incidents with the Government had been found,

5r1 Lanka

249, On 28 Juky 988, a letter was sant to the Government of Sri Lanka
transmitting the allegation that, althocugh the Indo-5ri Lankan agreement had
peen concluded on 29 July 1987 o establish peace and a return 0 normaloy in
Sri Lanka, kiliing of unarmed civilians continued in the context of internal
armad conflicts. The Special Rapparteur desceibed, by way of example, cases
of soch killings ateributed ko the Indian Peace-Keeping Forces {IPKF) and the
srl Lankan pelice as fallows:

{al} ©On 21 October 1987 at the Jaffna Teaching Hospltal, some 100 persons
were allegedly killed by IBKF scldiers It was alleged that the victims
included three Aottors, a number of medical interns, 10 nurses ard patients)

(b On 22 October 1987 at Aralithural Jetti, 35 persons were allegedly
killed whaen an IPEF helicopter attacked a group of people with rocket morctars;
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{c) On 24 Octobar 1987 in Sanguppltti, two wobeh were allegedly killed
by IPKF soldiers after having bash raped;z

(d) On 2% October 1987 at Chavakachoheri market, 68 persons were
allegedly killed when an IPEF helicopter attacked a large crowl of shoppersz)

te] on 30 October 1987 at the Hindu Women'sz Colleqge, three children ware
allegedly killed in an IPKF artlllery attack on a refugee cawp;

{f) On 16 Hovember 1987 in Valwertitural, seven persons, all young
males, ware detained by IPKF soldiers and taken to the IPEF camp at
Valvettitoral. 0On 17 Hovembar 1947, one of the seven, nasged Paramanathan, son
of Paramagamy, died allegedly as a result of borture. On 1B Hovember 1987
ancother, named Baburaj, son of Monugamy, waa allegedly shot dead in the grave
which ha had been foroced to dig at Vallai-velli along the road from
Valvettiturai to JatCfnaj

gy On 12 December 1987 at Alaveddy North, Jaffna, three brethers named
Pathmanathan KEirltharan, agesd 31, Pathmanathan Muralitharan,; aged 21, and
Pathmanathan Balenthitan were detained by IPKF soldiers and tortured,
Pathmanathan EKiritharan was allegedly killed by one of the soldlers with a
bayonet:

{h) On 29 Detember 1987, Kanagalingam Hathan was detained by IPXF at the
IPKPF camp ln Inuvil. His dead body, which was handed owver to hiz family on
16 January 1938, allagedly bore marks of torture. The death certificate
igsned by IPEF stated that Kanagalingam Wathan, =aid toe be a Diberakion Tigers
of Tamil Belam (L1TE} militant, disd on 16 January 1988 "probably due to
sndden cardio-resplratory arrest®;

{i) ©On 27 December 1987 in Batticaloa, at least 25 persons were killed
in a crowded market, allegedly in Llndiscriminate shooting by local policemen
and IPEF soldiers, after an attack by Tamil rebels on three policemen in which
one policeman waz killed.

250, In addition, a considerable number of civilians were allegedly killed by
a Tamil armed oppoaltion yroup. The following are some of such cases:

{a} On 1 March 1989 in Morawewa, in Trincomalee district, 17 persons, 16
of whom were said to be Sinhalese, were allegedly =hot dead in an attack by
Tamil rebals;

k) Ot 5 March 1988 at Sittaru, in Trincomales district, 26 civiliats on
a trwek were killed when the toak hit a land-mine allegedly set by Tamil
rebels;

(e} On 17 March 1988, near the etown of Digawapi in Apparal districe,
15 Sinhaleas villagers were killed by Tamll rebels.

25l. Furthermore, aince Iuly 1987 more than 250 government officials and
supparters of the United National Party, the ruling political party, including
its chairman, bad allegedly bean killed by a group named Janatha Vimokthi
Peramuna {JVP), which was sald to be opposed to the Indo-S5ri Lankan agreehient
of July 14987,



E/CN.4/1989/25
page 50

252, On 9 NHowvamber 1988, anotbher lebter was sent ko the Government oE

Sri Lanka tranemitting the allegation that a number of persons wera killed by
the Special Task Force (2TF} of the Sri Lankan army before the Indo-Sei Lankan
agreament in July 1987 and by IPKP after the agreement. The victims of such
killings wera said to be Tamil villagers., The Special Rapportaur described,
by way of ewampla, gevan alleged incidents of such killlngs. In addikion, the
Special Rapportaur transmitted allsgations that, daring the past eeveral
montha, indizeriminate killings had been carrisd oat by the Tamil rebels. One
incident of such killings was reported to have ocourred on 9 Cctober 1988 in
the village of Tlukulama, whare 47 Sinbhalags willagers, ins=loding L2 women and
18 children, wera allegedly killad by Tamil rebals.

253, In both letters, the Special Rapporbteur requested information on the
alleqations, and in particalar on any investigationz of thosze cases, ineluding
autopeisas, and any measures takan by the authorities to bring those
regponsibla ta justice and pravent further oscurransa of suweh deaths.

234, On L3 January Ll38%, the Special Rappocteur met the Permanent
Reprezentative of 3ri Lanka ta the United Nations QOFfEice at Geneva and
explained that the situation of gontinuing wiclencs in the area where
ineidanta of sommary or arbitrary axecations had hean allagad had hampered
investigationa of the incidentz. The violanca, particularly on the part of
LTTE made agystematic judicial invastigations of specific allegations
impracticable currently. Howaver, investigationg inte tha Lahugala
{Idumankulam} incident in Amparai disztrict oan 19 Pabruary 1986 had baen
completed by the Inspactar~Genaral of Police who had submitted his report on
ki alleged incident to Ehe High Conrt which had issued summonsas and the
judieial inguiry wae due to commence on 18 January 1989, The Parmanent
Rapresentative listed a numbar of pozitive developments which gave hope that
some of the conditions which had led to the emergence of those reports would
change for the better. The developmants were ztated to ba as follows:

{a) Lifting of the emergency with effect from midnight on
12 Jamuary 1989, In deciding to Lift the emergency, the President had takean
into account the improving security situation, which in his opinion "is dwe to
the confidence the masses of this country have placed in themselvez®, As a
result, 600 persons had immediately bean releazed and othars ware axpected to
ba relsasad in the near futurep

{(b) The Government had daeclared that it would ba ready to discuss the
repeal of the Prevention of Terroriem Act az security conditions ¢continued to
improva, A final decision, howevar, would have to await the alsction of the
new Parliament after the general alectionss

{c) Hoelding of Frovincial Council elactions in all part= of the island
was completed on 1% Movember 1988 and had led to a sabstantial measure of
administrative devolution. In the tamporarily mergad Worthern and Eastern
Frovinces, membars of Eormar militant groups have bacome members of Lhe
provincial administraktion, eschewing violsances

{d) Genaral alections ware scheduled For 15 Febhruary 198% and would
provide further opportunities for political participation by all militant
groups which had resorted to violenca in the past. The Tamil Dnited
Liberation Front, a Tamil democratic parliamentary party, had formed a
coalition with the militant groups to conteat tha genaral alactionsr



E/CN.4/1989/25
page 51

{e} 'The proscription on JVP which had ‘been opposing the IPEF presence in
Sri Lahka had been 1ifted affording it an opportunity to parciclpate
democratically in the country's political life.

255, The Parmanent Representative hoped that, as and when the security
sltuaticn imgproved, more information oo the incidents would be Eorthocoming and
in particular that ir would be possible to conduct proper inwvesztigations,

Sudan

256. om 2B July 19688, a letter was sent to the Goveroment of Sudan,
transmitting the allegation thakt, during the gpast yvear, in the iontecnal armed
conflict in the southern part of Sudan, a large number of civilianz, mainly
members of the Dinka ethnic group, had been killed by governmen:t [orces oc
militias recruited by those forces. The following three incidents were given
as examples of alleged Killings:

fal ©n 27728 March 1987 in Diein, Darfur Province, more thao
1,000 civilians were allegedly kilied by the Rizeigat militias;

ikl ©On 1l and 12 Aggusat 1987 in Wauw, at least 600, possibly
2,000 civilians, wera allegedly killed by the security forces;

{c} &t the beginoing of September 1947 in the town of Suk Jou, hundreds
of civilians ware allegedly killed by the security fcrces and militia members.

257. The Special Rapporteur requested information on the alleged occurrence of
summary or arbitrary executions, and in particular on any investigations of
those cases and the measures taken by the aothorities to bring those
responsible to justice apd prevent Further occurrcence of such deaths.

258, At the time of preparation of the present report no reply had been
received Erom the Government of Sudan.

Suriname

259, On 15 December 1988, a cable was sent ko the Government of Suriname
concerning the arxest and detention of Stanley Rensch, whom the

Zpecial Rapporteur had met during his visit to Suriname in August 1987,
According to Information received, Stanley Rensch was arrested on

10 December 19688 by tha Military Police on his peturp to Suriname from abroad.

260. The Special Rapporteur, expresaing his concecrn about the arrest apd
regquesting Information in particular on the charges brought againat Stanley
Rensch, appealad to the Govermment to ensure that all legal guarantees and
human righta, including the right to life, were reapected in his case.

' 261. Submeguently the Special Rapportaeur learned that Stanley Rensch had bean
releasad on 21 December 1988.

262, At the time of preparation of the present report no reply had been
raceived From the Govarnment of Surinamsz,
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Syrian Arab Repuablic

263. On 28 July 1988, a letter was sent te the Government of the Syrian Arab
Repuklic, transmitting alleqations oF deaths in detenticon. fThe Special
Rapportaur described, by way of example, three guch cases az follows:

{a}) On 14 November 1987 in Saidnaya prison near Dimashg {Damascus) .,
Ihzan "Jzzo was sald t0 have died ag a result of korkture and denial of nedical
traatmant

ib} In lata December 1987 or early Janvary L%8B at Fara' Falastin in
Damascus, Muhamoad al-'Arrad died in circuwmstances gimilar to those described
abore 7

(&) Bekween 23 and 22 April 1988 at Para al-Tahgiqg al-'Askari in Dimashg
(Damascus)}, 'Abd al-Razzag Abazid alsc died as a result of torture during
intarrogation,

264. The Special Rapporteur reguested information en Ehe above-mentioned
allegaticn, and in particular on any Lnvestigationz of those cages, including
ankopsies, and any measures taken by the autharities to bring thoss
respongikle to justice and prevent further occurrance of suach deaths.

265. On 9 MNovambar 1928, ancbthar letter wag =ent bo the Goverament of the
Syrian Arab Republic rconeerning the allegation that, doring the past sevaral
years, in Tadmar (Palmyra) prisen. A number of prisoners had been axecutad
jmmediately after a summary trisl, in which the accused ware not givan the
right to lzqal defance mor the right to appeal. Twenty=-nine names of
prigoners allegedly executed in Tadmur prison were given.

266. The Spacial Rapporreur requested information ob those azaess,

267. On 7 September L3388, a reply was received from the Governmant of the
Syrian Arab Republic concarning an allegad incident of killing of civilians in
Tripoli, Lebanon, on 20 Dagember 1986, by Syrizsn troops and an allzged death
in custody on 1 May 1986, which were described in the Sperial Rapportenr's
last raport {(B/CN.&/1988/22, para. 1bh}. With regard te the incident in
Tripoli, the reply stated that the Syrian prassence had been established at the
requast of the legitimate Lebanese anthorities, with a view to halting the
internecine fighting, helping the legitimate anthorities to re—establish
gecurity and stability throughout the country and endeayouring to achleve
nakionial reconciliation among the Lebanese in ordar to proteck Lebanon's
anity, independence and sovereignty. With regard to the alleqged death in
cuastody, it was stated Ehat the ¢laim that a person had died in May 1984 as a
result of torkture was totally unfoundead.

268, Un 21 December 1983, a raply was recelved from the Government ko the
Spacial Rapporteur's letters of 28 July and % Hoverber L2388, referring ro its
nata of 16 December 1953 to the Centre for Human Rights and attachmants
thereato, The note stated thak the documents tranamitted to the Government
from the Cantre foar Human Rights contained various allegations concerning the
human rights situation in the Syrian Arab Republic and the methods employed by
its =ecurity agencies, as well as a list of detaihses. The noie Was
accompanied by eight annexes risting the acts of terrorism, sabotage and
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assassination perpetrated by the persons named in the above-mentioned
documents and it was stated that those annexes alsc showed the errcors and
fallacious allegations contained in thoze documents as well as the terrarist
and crimipnal nature of the detainess, It was fourther stated that the
information contained in the documents was totally unfounded and was
propagated by terrorist or extremist groups and social outoasts.

Thajiland

269. On 9 MNovenber 1938, a letter was sent to the Government of Thailand
transmitting the allegation that, during the perled from July to October 1987,
five Eampuchaan refugees had allegedly been killed in a summary or achitrarcy
manner by member=z of Thai wilitary or paramilitary forcee operating along the
Thai-Kampuchasn border. The Special Rapporteur described four alleged
incidents a2 followe:

{fa) In July 1937, two Eampuchaan nationals, a pregnant woman and her
handicapped huskand, were taken into custody and killed by a soldier of the
Thai Rrmy"s Tazk Force 30, ag a punishment for collecting firewood outside
Site 2 refugee encampment in Prachin Buri Frovince:

(b) On & August 1987, a EKampuchean was2 shot dead after having been
arrested 2 kwm from the Site B border camp in Surin Provinge, near Ban Ehot
village:

{r} On 9 hugust 3987, a Kampuchean wag arrested by militiz forces 5 ¥m
From Site B and near Ban Cham village and was shot dead after severe beatings;

(dy On 18 Octobar 1987, a Xampuchean was killed by Thai paramilitarcy
Yillage Defence Voluntears 1 km north of Site B,

270. Tha Special Rapporteur requested Information on tha above-ment ioned
allegations, and in particular on any investigations of those cases and any
measures taken by the authorities to bring those responsible to justice and
prevant further occurcenca of such deaths.

271. At the time of preparation of the present report no reply had baen
received from the Government of Thailand,

Oganda

272, On 15 Decamber 1980, a letter was zent to the Government of Uganda
concerning the allegation that, in late October and November 1933, in

Gulu District in northern Uganda where groups opposing The Government have
been active, a number of villagers were deliberately burped to death in their
hute by govarnment forces doring anti-rebel operation=. The Spacial
Rapporteur mentioned five families allegedly killed by government forces,

273, The Speclal Rapportenr recquested information on the alleged kiliings and
in particular on any invaeatigations of those cases and any measures taken by
the authorities to bring those regpongible to justice and prevent further
occurrance of such deaths.,
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2T4. Bubsequently, information was received in connection with the
above-mentioned alleqaticon to the effect that the Major-General, commanding
the Hatiopnal Resistance army (NRAR] had reportedly anncunced the establishwent
of an inquiry inte reporte of WRR Killings of civilians in the course of
counter—insurgency operations it northern tganda.

275, The Special Rapporteur acknowledges that since his letter was sent to the
Government on 15 December 19688, it might not have had enough time to reply
before preparation of the present repart.

Inited Bingdom of Great Britain and Horthern Ireland

276, On 28 July 1988, a leotter wiax ment to the Govermment of the

United Kingdom of Great Britain amd Northeprn Ireland concerning the allegation
that, on 6 March 1988 in Gibraltar, three parsone gaid to be members of the
Irish Republican Army (IRR), Mairead Farrell, Dapniel MoCann and Sean Savage,
were shot dead by members af the Special Air Service (SAS). It was reportad
that, according to eye-witnesses, the three persons were shot while having
offered no rezistance when confronted by members of SA8, and that they ware
cepeatedly shat when lying wounded.

277. The Special Repporteur requested information on the above-mentloned
allegation, and in particular on any investigations of thoze cases, including
autopsies, and any meapures taken by the auvthorities to bring those
responsible to justice and prevent further occurrence of such deatha.

278. On % November 19688, a reply was received from the Government of the
Onited Kingdem, stating that the incquest in Gibraltar inta the deaths of the
three TRA members had been opened on & Saptember and concluded on

30 Septembar 1988, OUnder the direction of the Gibraltar Coroner,

Felix Pizzarelleo, the ll-man jury had considered evidence from some

68 witnesses and had degided, by a ¥ to 2 majority in each case, that the
three had been killed lawfully. The two appropriate prosecutional
authorities, the Gihraltar Attorney-General and the Director of Army Legal
Bervices, had received statements taking during the police investigations and,
folloewing reports of the inguest from their representatives who had been
present throughoot, they had each zeparately and independantly conclofded khat
there were no grounds for prosecution, Tt wag also stated that the Gibraltar
judiclary was totally independent of, and separate from, the administration.

United Statez of Anerics

279, On 30 March 1988, a cable was sent to the Government of the [nited States
of America concerning a case of imminent execoticon. BRocording to information
recelved a person named John Selvage, who was convicted of murder and
sentenced to death in February 1980, was schedoled to be execntad in Texas oan
30 March 1988, It was alleged that the jury at this trial had not been
informed of the fact that Selvage had a history of mental fllneBs dating back
to 1970 and that he was later evaluated as belhyg “"psychotic”.

280, The Special Rapporteur, reguesting information on the above-mentioned
case,; In particular on his mental state as examined by a psychilatrist,
appealed to the Sovernment, on purely humanitariasn grounds, for a stay of
execution ontil the allegations mentioned above had been clarified.
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2B1. Cn 16 May 1968, a reply was received from the Government of the

United States of America, stating that John Selvage's execution, scheduled for
10 March 1988, had been postponed by the Urited States Supreme Court pending
consideraticon of a writ of certiorari. Acocording to the raply, John Selwage,
who was conviected in 1979 for capital murder and aggravated robbery, was '
zentencad to death in 19380 and his sentence was canfirmed in 1984 by the

Texas Court of Rppeal. In 19685, the District Court of the Southern District
of Texas, after infitially ordering a stay of execution, had denied

Mr. Selvage's firsr patition for habeas corpus to overturn his sentence and
the Tnited Statez Fifth Cirenit Coort had confirmed that decizion in 1987. On
3 March 1989, the District Court had tepporarily granted a second wreit for a
stay of esecution, hbot the Fifth Circult Court had reverzed that decision on
28 Marech 1988 on the ground that the cage on whiech the Disgtriet Court had
relied in geanting the stay had been dismizaed., As stated above, on

29 Mareh 1948, the Dnlted Skatea Soprems Court had granted a =tay of execution
pending its declzion on whether to ageept Mr. Selvage's case on appeal.

282, According to the reply, at the tine of his arrest, Selvage was not being
treated for any psychological Aiscrder amd his attorneys, after conducting
investigations into Selvage's peychological condition, had not put forward
any defende based on his psyohological ftate or challenged his competence 0
stand trial. Wevertheless, in February 1948, atfter Selvage had for the first
time sought a stay of exacution based in part on the izsoe of his mental
competence, the 230th District Court of Harrils County; Texas, had ordered a
psychiatrist and a clinical psychologlist to conduct thorough psychological
ezaminaticns of Selvage and their reports had both conclud=d that, despite
some evidence of psychosis, Selvage was competent to be executed under

the standards established by the United States Supreme Court in

Pord v, Wainwright, 477 U5 3%9; 91 L.BD.2Dh 335; 106 5.Ct., 2595 (1984}.

283, Together with the reply, the Special Rapporteur received copies of the
decxision by the United States Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circcult on

i8 March 1968, the decision by the Unjited States Supreme Court in

Ford v. Wainwriqht and the reports by Dr. John D, Nottingham, Jr., a
pesychlatrist and Dr. Jercme B. Brown, a clinical psychologist.

Viet Ham

284, On 18 October 1988, a cable was sent Lo the Government of Viet NHam
concerning the alleged imminent exgcution of two Buddhist monks and a layman.
According to information recelved, Pham Van Thuong, alsc known as Thich Tue 3y
and 1= Manh That, also known as Thich Tri Sieu, were reportedly sentenced to
death on 8 October 1988 amd Tran Van Luong on 22 Septenmber 1938 by the
People's Tribunal in Ho Chi Minh City. It wag alleged that the thres,
arrested in April 1984 apd detained at Phan Dang Luu prison, had suffered
1ll=treatment ard torturg ard that the trial as a result of which the three
were sentenced to desath had not guaranteed the safeguards dezigned to protect
the rights of the defandant, including the right to have lagal assistance.

285, The Special Rapporteur, exprasging his comcern at the allegation of the
absence of safequard® intended to gnaure the basic rights of the defendant,
requested information on the above-mentioned cases, in particular on the legal
provigiona and procedures under which the three might have been charged and
tried.
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286, On 5 January 1989, a reply was received from the Government of Viet Ham
stating that Pham Van Thuong, one of the leadars of an anti-State organization
callsd the "Pree Viet Nam Force™ and having close ties with angther anti-Statce
arganization, had participated in subveraive activities wilth a view to
ovarthrowing the Government amd that Le Manb That had also pacticipated in the
subversive activitiea of the same apnti-State organizations. Agcording to the
reply, the two accusad were santenced to death on A0 September 1988 by the
Court of Ficst Instance in Ho Chi Minh City for their attempt to overthrow the
Government, in acgordance with article 73 of the Viethamese Penal Code.
Subseqguently, by a decision of the Court of Appeals in Ho Chi Minh Clty on

15 November 1988, the death sentences were commuted to 20 years'

imprisonment. With regard to Tran ¥an Lucng, it was further stated that,
being one of the leaders of anti-State organizations called the “Truong Son
Divisien® and the "Popular Front for the Restoraticn of the Homeland", and
being alse *President® and “Prime Minizster® of the “Yolonteer Foroces for the
Restoraticon of the Homeland in the Interior of the Country”™ and the "Natlonal
League of Resistance for the Restoration of the Homeland of Viet Ham™, he had
pacticipated in subversive activities in erder to everthrow the Government,
After his arcest on % December 1945 and his trial on 23 September 1988 by the
Court of First Instance, he had been sentenced to death in accordance with
arkicle 73 of the Penal Code. His case would be reviewed by the Court of
appeals in Hoe Chi Minh City in due course,

Yemen

287. On 9 Hovember 1988, a letter was sent to the Government of Yemen
transmitting an allegation that, daring the past several years, some
250 persons had allegedly been assassinated.

289, The Special Rapporteur described two examples of such alleged
assassinations as Eollows:

fa) On 28 December 1987, Abdo Saleh Ghanem, Ali Ben Alis Ghurbkani and
Ahmed Ben Ahmed Chouthabi, said to have been invelyvyed with the Hational
Opposition Froni; were assassinated by agents of the security services;

{b) In Januvary 1988, Sheikh Ahmed Hasaer Al-Thahab of the fajfa region
was assagsinated.

283, The Special Rapporteur reguested information on the above-mentionad
allegationg, and in particular on any inveatigations of those cases and any
measures taken by the authorjitiea ko bring those reaponsible to justice and
pravent further occurrenge of such deaths.

290, At the time of preparation of the present report no reply had been
received from the Government of Yemen.
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Eaire

291, ©n 28 July 1988, a letter was =zent to the Government of Zaire
transmitting the allesgation, that on 13 November 1987, in Beni, three persons,
arcested on their return from a wisit to TUganda, were allegedly executed at
Kibwe on the road from FKagemire te Kagumba. The three were said to be
Fitamuriko from Earorome willage, Muhinde from Museya village and Viahoereho
from Eilindera village.

293, The Special Rapporteur requested information on the alleged occurrence of
summary or arbitrary executions and in particular on any Investigations of
thogse ¢azes, including avtopzies, and any measurss kaken by the authorities to
bring those regponsible to justice and prevent further occurcence of such
deaths,

233, At the time of preparation of the present report no reply had been
received from the Goverpment of Zaire.
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III. AMALYSIS QF THE PHEHOMEBHNON

&. ERemedial and/or preventive measures for the protection -
of the right to iife: international standards

294. In hie last report (E/CH.4/1988/22) the Svecial Rappocteur desgribad the
hackground and development of the idea of establishing ipternational standardas
designed to prevent the occurrence of summary or arkitrary executions and to
anghre proper investigations of all dsarhs in suspicicus civoumstances. He
also described the efforts and co-operation of various organizaticns and
groups. He now considers that it has been clearly undzrstood and widely
avgcepted that there is an urgent need to develoep such standards,

295, At its tenth 3ession hald in Vienna from 22 to 31 August 1988, the
Committer on Crime Prevantfon and Control, based on Boonomic and Social
Council resoution 1986/10, section VI, decided to recommend ko the Eoonomic
and Social Council the adoption of draft resolution ¥, entitled "Effective
prevention and investigaktion of extra-legal arbitrary and sumeary
executions™. The text of the draft resclution is found in the report of the
Committee on Crime Prevention and Contral (E/Ll98B/17: E/AC.57/1968/17).

296, During the process of preparation for the Committee's tenth fession, the
Special Rapporteur was consulted and ¢lose co—gperation was maintained between
the Centre for Human Rlghtz and the Crime Prevention and Criminal Justice
Branch of the Centre for Social Development and Humanitacian Affairs.

297, The annex tc the draft resclution, which seks out 20 draft principles on
the effective prevention and investigation of extra-~legal, arbitrary and
summary executions, consists of thres parts on prevention, investigation and
legal proveeding2. In the part on prevention, the probhibition of all
extra-legal, arbitrary and summary executions is alaborated in eight
principles, prescribing legal, administeative and organizational measures to
be takean by Sovernments. In khe part on investigation, nine principles dzal
with wvarjions elements of a tharough, prompt and impartial investigation,
including an adeguate ankopsy, as well as related elements, such as tha
protection of complainants, witnesges, investigators and their familias and
the publication of the findings. The remaining three principles, in the part
on lagal proceedings are davoted to the bringing to justice of those
identified aa having been involved in extra-legal, arhitrary and sommary
axecutions, the fact that a superior's order may not ba invoked to justify
participation in extra-legal, arbitrary or suommary executions, the prohibition
of hlanket imminity from prosecution for any pecson allagedly involved in
extra=-leqgal, achitrary or summary executions, and falr and adeguats
compansation to the familiezs and dependants of victims,

298. The Special Rapporteur was qratified by the ocuokcome of the concertéd
efforts made by wvarious organs of the United Mations and other internatijonal
organizations. He is also pleased ko sea, in the ahnex to tha ahove-mentioned
draft resolution, all the elamants to which ha refarced in his last report
(E/CN.4/1988B/22, para. 194} as a minimum in intermational standards concerning
sommAry Or arbitrary executions. The principles embodying these elements and
elahorated in the annex to the draft resolution are explained in sufficient
detail and clarity. The Special Rapporteur hopesz thar the draft resolution
will be unanimously adopted in tha forthcoming =ession of the Econowic and
Social Council.
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B, Co-ordination and co=onacaticon of machaniams

299. In the preceading paragraphs, the Special Rapporteur referred to the
co-ordinated sfforts and effecktive co-opsration with regard to the
agtablishment of =tandarde for the prevention of summary or arkitrary
executions avd for proper investigation= intc deaths in suapicicua
clrcumatances. Sindilar co-ordination apd ¢o-operation are yet to ba explored
in tha following three areas.

1. Thematic Special Rapporteuntrs

300. The Special Rapporteur has axamined the reports subaitted to the
Commission on Human Right2 in past years by the Special Rapporteur on the
aquestion of tortura and the Working Group on Enforced or Involuntary
Disappearancaes and has noted that certain parts of the mandates of the
thematic Spacial Rapporteurs and the Working Group overlap., In fact, a
considerahle number of cases were concurraently brought to the attantion of the
Special Rapporteurs and thae Working Group, since they contained elements which
weka ralevant to all three mandates. An example of such cases wounld be ane in
which a perszon is ahdocted, tortored in detention and then found dead, tha
threa phencomena namaly, enforced or involuntary disappearance, tortura and
sumbary of arbitrary execokion, beingd prasent in one case.

301. The Special Rapporteur would simpiy like to state at the present stage
that he i3 willing to explore the posaihility of co-operation among the thraa
thematic mandates, reaching beyond a simple exchange of informaticn on allaged
cages ralevant to the mandates concerned,. In this cespect, he would weloome
any suyggesations or proposals.

2. Methods of implementration

302, Ag described in chapter I, the mandate of the Spacial Rapporteur hag besan
implementaed by the Ffollowing action:

(a) Inguirie: concerning allegations of sumBary of arkitrary executions,
which are communicated to tha Governments concerned, requesting information,
in pacticolar on official investigationz, trial procesdingg, prosecntion and
pnichment of those regponsible and measyres taken t0 pravent SuURBmary or
arbitrary exgcotions;

ibl] DUrgent appeals fo the Governpents concerned regarding alleged cagses
of imminent or threateped sxecution which appear prinma facie relevant to his
mandatae, appealing to the Governpment to ensure that the right to life of the
individual ia protecoted and requesting informpation on the allaged cases and in
certain casea, appealing, on hmwanitarian grounds, for a stay of exscution;

{c) On—site visits to the countriss concerned upon tha invitation of the
Government, senabling the Special Rapporteur to inform himsslf of particular
aituationz, cases or relavant background nmaterials

{4} Me=atings with Governient repreassntativas for consultation in
connectjon with the allagad sunmary Oor arbitrary axecuntiong in their conptry.
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303, It iz clear that, in all four types of action taken by the Spectal
Rapporteur, co-operation by the Governments conceined iz vital for the
effective inplamantation of tha Spacial Rapporteur's mandate. To that end,
the Boonomic and Social Coundail, in paragraph 12 of regolation 1984738,

"Orges all Governments, in particular thoss that have consistently
not reaponded o communications transmitted to them by the Spacial
Rapporitanr, ard all others concerned, to co-—operate with and assist the
Special Rapportear 8¢ that he may cariry out his mandate effectively”.

304. in this connection, an sxampination of the Spacial Rapporteur's seven
reports to the Commission on Human Rlghts gives Scim indication of the
sityation, The following table zhows the number of Governments to which
allegations of summary or arbitrarvy executions wete addressed and from which
replies werle received from 1982 o 19449,

Numaber of Goverpments to which allagations ware addressed
and from which repljes were received

1952-1989
[ oo e —— T ——— 1
Repor 45 Humber of Replies Humber of Replias i
GOVEr nEwnts received Govar nments racejved
to which letters ta which
containing appaals wate
allegations aent
Ware zent
"E/CN. 471983713 40 13
B/ftM.4/1984/ 29 i a/ 5 af a 9
BFCH. 41985717 24 b/ & a/ 13 2
EfCR. 4/1986/21
Concernimng 1984
allegations 16 1
Concerning 198%
allegations 14 12 14 5
B/CN, 471987720 - 21 11 11 3
BfCH, 4/1%88/22 1 10 11 ]
E/CN,4/1989/25 36 15 23 B

a/ Government2 pot named in the report.

b/ Of whigh 21 Governmpents wers not named in the report.
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305. Purthermore, the Special Rapporteur, reviewing his paat activities, would
like to foous on the following two points inh order to enhance the effective
implementation of his mandate:

{a) The poszibility of more on-site vi=its should be explored,
espacially to the countrias whare serious allegationsg of summary or arbikrary
execution® have been made, in order that the Special Rapporteur may bettar
inform himself of the situation or incidents 50 as t¢ bae hetbter placed to make
recomendat tongy

(b} The possibility of graater co=operation with other international
organizations, whether governmental or non—-governmental, should be conszidered,
for example, with a view to making a team of forensic medical axperts
available to accompany and assist the Special Rapporteur during hie visits to
counntries in order to examine allegations of summary or arbitrary executions,

1, wigit in situ, advisory services and technical assistance

106, The Commission on Haman Rights, in ite resolution 1988/54, entitled
*pdvisory servicea im the field of human rights™, requested its special
rapportears and representatives, as well as the Working Group on Enforced ar
Involuntary Msappearances, "to include in their recommendations,; whenaver
appropriate, propozals for gpecific projects to be realized under the
programma of advisory services" (para. 9} .

307. Of those recommendatlons amd proposals which the Special Rapporteur on
stmary or arbitrary execptions made in his past raports, two are relevant o
the programme of advisory services,

308. One concernsg the Special Rapporteur's proposal of a general nature. In
hiz laat report (E/CH.4/1988/22, para, 207 (a)]) he recommendad thatr “as a
matter of urgency, training programmes should be organized with a view to
training or educating law enforcement officers in human righte issues
connected with their work". For tils purpose he proposed rhat regional
seminars and workshops should be organized. He has sinee learned that such
seminars and workshops are organized by reglonal inatitutes in co-operation
with the Crime Preventicn and Criminal Justice Branibh of the Centre for Social
Developnent amd Homanitarcian Affairs,

an9, The other concerhs specific countries, namely Oganda {E/CH.A/71987/720,
annex II) amd Suriname (B/CN.4/1988/22, annex). In both cases, the Special
Rapporteur, after having visited the countries within tha context of his
mandate and informed himself in situ of the situations concerned, identified
the questiona and issues involved., The recoxmendations and proposals made for
thase countries were the ovntcome of his visit in siltu.

310, In order to implement these proposals, co-operation and co=-ordinatlon
between Governments and United WNations offices would be indispensable. The
SBpecial Rapportewr considers that in certain cases his experience in the
specific country might be of some help in formulating a project in or for the
countey capcecned.
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v, CONCLISIONE AND RECOMMENDATIONS

31, ks meptioned in previous reports, hundreds of thousands of people have
died in situations of inrernarional and internal armed conflicts. In 1988,
however, a numbar of positive initiativas were taken in various international
eonflicts leading to the oreation of an atmosphere in which sitvations
conducive to summary or arbitrary executions can bhe reduced. It is very much
hopad that these afforte will give rise to definitive aolutione so that
international paace and security can be achieved, It iz only in an atmosphera
of peace that human rights, and in partioular the right to lifa, can bae
guaraptesd and that the national institutions established to protect haman
rights and ahable perzong ko enjoy them can be sgtrengthened and operate
affactively. Therafore the 2ffores under way o resoslve these fonflicts are
o be welcomed.

312. Unfortunately, the initlatives taken in dealing with international
confiict areas have not g0 far been matched by similar inltiatives to resolve
internal armed conflicts of tensions. Conseguently, thousands of lives atill
conkinie to be lost by civilians in such conflicts, In the period upder
ceview, there has been g lot of indiscriminakte Killing of unarmed civiliana on
the part of govermmental forceg., The groups opposing Governments hayve also
bean gulley of this practice. In fact, in gome situations where Governments
hawve genuinely tried to addreas the grievances gilving rise to such groups and
have tried to involve all perzons in the democratic process, such groups have
tried to sabotage thoss efforts and in 30 doding have wantonly killed people.

All. It iz a5 matkter of regret khat; in some areas where peace negotiations
hawve ended international armed conflict, reports are emerging which indicate
that the goverhmental instrumenks of power have turned from the enemy across
the border to civilians within the country, with the result that there has
bzen a vary noticeable lporease in summary or acrhitrary executions by the
Governments concernad of their own ¢ivillans., In aome cases, aceording to the
allegakions made, persons who had already been tried, without the proper
procedural safeguards, and sentenced to a term of imprisonment have been
execubed without further due process of the law or trial.

314. In the periocd under review, the Special Rapporteur haz received mora
reports than at any time during the period oF his mandate, alleging incrceased
use of chemical weapons., In at laast three areas, there were allegations that
chemdcal weapons had been used and that they had reselted in thousands of
deathzs. In this reqgard, the Special Rapporteur walcomas the determination of
the international community as reflected in the FPinal Declaration of the
represeantatives of States participating in the Conference on kthe Prohibition
of Chemical Weapons which met in Paris from 7 to 1l Japuary 1589 when they
resolved to prevent any recourse to chamical weapons by complekely eliminating
them, and aslemnly afficmed their commitment not to use chemical weaponz and
condemned such uae.

I15. A diaturbing feature of the period under review ia the incceasing number
of allegations which the Spacial Rapporteur has received to the effect that
thousands of people have lost thelr lives at the handas of police or other law
enforcanent ofFficials in demonskrationa. It would appear khat the law
enforcement officials 4id not act with the restraint reguiraed in such cases
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according to the Code of Conduct For Law Enforcement Officials. The Special
Rapporteur would therefore strongly reiterate the recommendation he made in
his last report that the United Hations Centre for Human Rights should
organize seminars or workshops for law enforcement officials to train them and
inculcate in them the principle that they should carry out their work with due
respect for the human rights of the individual, and to familiarize them with
varfous internationzl human rights instouments whizh are directly related o
their work, There is algo room for bhilateral and mpnitilateral technical
assiseance in this reqard.

Ale. One of the problematic isszues that hag faced the Special Rapporteur iz
how to determine whether a "death squad” or ap extreme right- or left-wing
group which iz responsible for killing pecple is acking independently or with
tha support, tolerance, connivance or sncouragemant of thae Govermment. 1In
some countrles it is alleged thak, althouwgh such groups are ostensibly
independent, they are sponscred by the Government or the Goverpnent tolerates
them or in fact they include police and military personnel in plain clothes
and under orders fron their superiorg, The Governments have said that soch
groups act independently of them. The Special Rapporteur would welcome the
Comeission's views on how to deal with this problem. Whatever the position,
it is the primary duty and responsibility of the Government to ensure that the
right to life 12 guaranteed and protected fiom anyone who attempis to violate
it.

. o .



